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In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing 
Standards, we: 

0 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include 
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 

0 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the City of Ozark, Missouri's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

0 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise 
substantial doubt about the City of Ozark, Missouri ' s ability to continue as a going concern for a 
reasonable period of time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we 
identified during the audit. 

Required Supplementary I11Jormatio11 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's 
discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 4-13 and 55-56 be presented to 
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, although 
not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who 
considers it to be an essential pait of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an 
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the 
required supplementaiy information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and 
comparing the info1mation for consistency with management' s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial 
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not 
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us 
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Supplementary Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opm10ns on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the City of Ozark, Missouri's basic financial statements. The accompanying budgetary comparison 
information -nonmajor fund and schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of 
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements 
for Federal Awards, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic 
financial statements. Such infonnation is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The 
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements 
and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial 
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America. In our opinion, the budgetary comparison information-nonmajor fund and the 
schedule of expenditures of federal awards are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic 
financial statements as a whole. 
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditillg Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated July 21 , 2025, on our 
consideration of the City of Ozark, Missouri ' s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with ce1iain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The 
purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Ozark, 
Missouri's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That repmi is an integral part of an audit 
perfonned in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering City of Ozark, Missouri's internal 
control over financial repmiing and compliance. 

~CV P~ t- L--C--
Decker & Pace, LLC 

Springfield, Missouri 
July 21, 2025 
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P.O. Box 295 
Ozark, Missouri 65721 

City of Ozark Missouri 

Fax 
Phone 

417-581-0575 
417-581-2407 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Our discussion and analysis of the City of Ozark's financial perfonnance provides an overview of the City's 
financial activities for the year ended December 31 , 2024. Please read it in conjunction with the City's 
financial statements, which begin on page 13. 

Financial Highlights 

* The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the City of Ozark exceeded its liabilities and deferred 
outflows at the close of the most recent fiscal year by$ 121,986,500 (net position). Of this amount, 
$ 17,570,987 represents unrestricted net position, which may be used to meet the government's ongoing 
obligations to citizens and creditors. 

* As of December 3 1, 2024, governmental activities and business-type activities had net positions of 
$68,410,839 and$ 53,99,883 respectively. 

* At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Ozark's governmental funds repmied combined ending 
fund balances of $ 19,946,830, an increase of $ 2,704,018 in comparison with the prior year. 
Approximately 55.13% or $ 11,917,304 is available for discretionary spending by the City of Ozark. 
The remaining fund balance is either restricted by outside parties or in a nonspendable form. 

* The unassigned fund balance for the General Fund, $ 11,917,304 is 98.43% of total General Fund 
expenditures, and is an increase in comparison with the prior year unassigned fund balance. 

* The City of Ozark's long-term debt obligations decreased by $ 2,503,232, or 7.28% as compared to 
prior fiscal year. 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

This discussion and analysis provided here are intended to serve as an introduction to the City of Ozark's 
basic financial statements. The City of Ozark's basic financial statements consist of three components: 1) 
government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) the notes to the basic financial 
statements. This report also includes supplementary information intended to furnish additional detail to 
support the basic financial statements themselves. 

Government-wide Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the 
City of Ozark's finances, in a manner like a private-sector business. 

The statement of net position presents financial info1mation on all the City of Ozark's assets, liabilities, and 
deferred inflows/outflows of resources, with the difference reported as net position. Over time, increases or 
decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City of 
Ozark is improving or deteriorating. 
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The statement of activities presents infonnation showing how the City of Ozark's net position changed 
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are rep01ted as soon as the underlying event 
giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows . Thus, revenues and expenses 
are rep01ted in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., 
uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave). 

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City of Ozark that are 
principally suppo1ied by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other 
functions that are intended to recover all or a significant po1tion of their costs through user fees and charges 
(business-type activities) . The governmental activities of the City of Ozark include general government, 
public safety, transpo1iation, sanitation, culture, and recreation. The business-type activities include the 
Water and Sewer systems. 

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 14 and 15 of this repo1t. 

Fund Financial Statements. A.fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over 
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City of Ozark, like other state 
and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related 
legal requirements. All the funds of the City of Ozark can be divided into two categories: governmental 
funds and proprietary funds. 

Governmental Funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported 
as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government­
wide financial' statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows 
of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. 
Such infonnation may be useful in assessing a government's near-tenn financing requirements. 

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, 
it is useful to compare the infonnation presented for governmental funds with similar infonnation presented 
for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better 
understand the long-te1m impact of the government's near-tenn financing decisions. Both the governmental 
fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund 
balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and 
governmental activities. 

The City of Ozark maintains three individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in 
the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and 
changes in fund balances for the General Fund and Park Funds which are considered to be major funds. 
Data from the other governmental fund is combined into a single aggregated presentation. 

The City of Ozark adopts an annual appropriate budget for its General Fund. A budgetary comparison 
statement has been provided for the General Fund and the Park Fund to demonstrate compliance with this 
budget. 

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 16-19 of this report. 
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Proprietary funds. The City of Ozark maintains two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds 
are used to repo11 the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial 
statements. The City of Ozark uses enterprises funds to account for its Water and Sewer operations. 

Proprietary funds provide the same type of infonnation as the government-wide financial statements, only in 
more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate infonnation for the Water and 
Sewer operations which are considered to be major funds of the City of Ozark. 

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 20-22 of this report. 

Notes to the Financial Statements. The notes provide additional information that is necessary to acquire a 
full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to 
the financial statements can be found on pages 23-54 of this repo11. 

Other Information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this rep011 also 
presents required supplementm:y information concerning the City of Ozark's progress in funding its 
obligation to provide pension benefits to its employees. Required supplementaiy info1mation can be found 
on pages 55-59 of this report. 

The budget to actual of nonmajor governmental fund is presented immediately following the required 
supplementaiy inf01mation on pensions. The schedules can be found on page 60 of this report. 

Government-Wide Overall Financial Analysis 

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government' s financial position 
and an imp01tant detenninant of its ability to finance services in the future. In the case of the City of Ozark, 
assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded liabilities and defen-ed inflows by 
$ 121,986,500, at the close of the most recent fiscal year. 
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City of Ozark 
Condensed Statement of Net Position 

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total 

2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 

Current Assets and other assets $ 24,585,596 $ 23,302,930 $ 9,231 ,549 $ 13 ,139,663 $ 33,817,145 $ 

Capital Assets 65,106,041 61,461,467 61,037,686 56,406,590 126,143,727 

Total Assets 89,691,637 84,764,397 70,269,235 69,546,253 159,960,872 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 

Pension related 1,740,392 1,422,835 979,163 727,025 2,719,555 

Total Deferred Outflows 1,740,392 1,422,835 979,163 727,025 2,719,555 

Current Liabilities 3,516,708 4,834,951 898,550 714,497 4,415,258 

Long-term Debt 18,176,601 18,160,899 16,682,669 18,544,395 34,859,270 

Total Liabilities 21,693,309 22,995,850 17,581,219 19,258,892 39,274,528 

Deferred Inflows 

Lease related 1,246,839 1,349,948 1,246,839 

Pension related 81,042 144,691 91,518 130,503 172,560 

Total Deferred Inflows 1,327,881 1,494,639 91,518 130,503 1,419,399 

Net Position: 

Invested in 

capital assets-net 48,541,483 44,489,161 45,822,833 39,107,019 94,364,316 

Restricted 7,756,571 7,552,963 2,294,626 2,882,028 10,051,197 

Unrestricted 12,112,785 9,654,619 5,458,202 8,894,836 17,570,987 

Total net position $ 68,410,839 $ 61,696,743 $ 53,575,661 $ 50,883,883 $ 121,986,500 $ 

By far, the largest po1tion of the City of Ozark's net position (77.36%) reflects its investment in capital 
assets (e.g., land, buildings, machinery, equipment, vehicles, and infrastructure), less any related outstanding 
debt that was used to acquire those assets. The City of Ozark uses these capital assets to provide a variety of 
services to its citizens. Accordingly, these assets are not available for future spending. Although, the City 
of Ozark's investment in capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources 
used to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be 
used to liquidate these liabilities. 

An additional portion of the City of Ozark's net position (8.23%) represents resources that are subject to 
external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of$ 17,570,987 is unrestricted and 
may be used to meet the government's ongoing obligations to its citizens and creditors. 

At the end of the cun-ent fiscal year, the City of Ozark is able to rep01t positive balances in all reported 
categories of net position, both for the government as a whole, as well as for its separate governmental and 
business-type activities. The same situation held true for the prior fiscal year. 

The City of Ozark's overall net position improved to$ 9,405,874 or a difference of$ 973,810 from the prior 
year's improvement. 
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2023 

36,442,593 

11 ·1,868,057 

154,310,650 

2,149,860 

2,149,860 

5,549,448 

36,705,294 

42,254,742 

1,349,948 

275,194 

1,625,142 

83,596,180 

10,434,991 

18,549,455 

112,580,626 



Revenues: 
Program Revenues: 

Charge for services $ 
Operating grants 

and contributions 
Capital grants and 

contributions 

General Revenues: 
Taxes 
Interest 
Other 
Total Revenues 

Expenses: 
Administration 
Public Safety 
Parks and recreation 
Streets 
Stormwater 
Interest 
Water 
Sewer 
Sanitation 

Total Expenses 

Other sources and (uses): 
Transfers 
Sale of assets 

Change in Net Position 

Net Position, beginning 

Net Position, ending $ 

City of Ozark 
Changes in Net Position 

Governmental Activities 
2024 

3,338,592 

144,152 

3,889,292 

14,020,142 
854,390 

57,889 
22,304,457 

2,774,302 
4,572,687 
4,809,453 
2,708,290 

106,596 
739,033 

15,710,361 

120,000 

6,714,096 

61,696,743 

68,410,839 
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2023 

$ 3,104,413 

4,550 

4,255,739 

12,954,539 
527,668 

58,402 
20,905,311 

2,237,863 
4,867,527 
4,740,193 
2,548,221 

72,834 
822,968 

15,289,606 

110,000 

5,725,705 

55,971,038 

$ 61,696,743 

Business-type Activities 
2024 2023 

$ 10,620,647 $ 10,109,728 

667,194 1,757,610 

1,241,969 1,270,155 
875,721 1,196,498 
60,931 

13,466,462 14,333,991 

4,027,390 4,860,519 
5,253,972 5,507,922 
1,373,322 1,149,191 

10,654,684 11,517,632 

(120,000) (110,000) 

2,691,778 2,706,359 

50,883,883 48,177,524 

$ 53,575,661 $ 50,883,883 



Governmental Activities . During the current fiscal year, net position for governmental activities increased 
$ 6,714,096 which was an increase of$ 988,391 as compared to the prior fiscal year with an ending balance 
of$ 68,410,839. The increase was additional retail outlets, increasing sale tax of$ 995,308, increase in park 
activity fees of$ 205,227 counter balance by increase in grant revenue minus developer contributions. 

Business-type Activities. For the City of Ozark's business-type activities, the results for the current fiscal 
year were positive in that the overall net position increased to reach an ending balance of 
$ 53,883,883 or a$ 2,691,778 increase which was a decrease of$ 14,581 from the prior year. As such there 
was not a major factor in the changes as they were relative stable. 

Financial Analysis of the Governmental Funds 

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related 
legal requirements. 

Governmental Funds 

The focus of the City of Ozark's governmental funds is to provide infonnation on near-tenn inflows, 
outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such info1mation is useful in assessing the City's financing 
requirements. In paiticular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government' s net 
resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. 

Some significant items are presented below for comparison and analysis. 

Revenues: 
Prope1ty taxes 
Franchise fees 
Sales taxes 
Missouri motor fuel taxes 
Licenses & permits 
Charges for services 
Fines & forfeitures 
Interest 
Grants 
Miscellaneous 

Total 

Percent of 
Total 2024 

5.01% $ 1,116,783 
3.78% 844,223 

48.90% 10,906,354 
5.17% 1,152,782 
1.99% 444,320 

11.37% 2,536,872 
0.61% 136,528 
3.83% 854,390 

12.24% 2,730,308 
7.09% 1,581,897 

100.00% 22,304,457 
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$ 

Change 
2023 Amount % 

1,096,731 $ 20,052 1.83% 
874,642 (30,419) -3.48% 

9,911,054 995,300 10.04% 
1,086,323 66,459 6.12% 

401,734 42,586 10.60% 
2,341,200 195,672 8.36% 

75,289 61,239 81.34% 
527,668 326,722 61.92% 

2,025,739 704,569 34.78% 
2,579,142 (997,245) -38.67% 

20,919,522 1,384,935 6.62% 



Percent of Change 
Total 2024 2023 Amount % 

Expenditures: 
General government 10.98% 2,205,472 2,012,513 192,959 9.59% 
Police and Courts 21.36% 4,289,167 4,128,397 160,770 3.89% 
Streets 6.14% 1,233,037 1,176,899 56,138 4.77% 
Parks 21.22% 4,260,209 4,118,999 141 ,210 3.43% 
Storm water 0.27% 53,282 35,033 18,249 0.00% 
Capital outlay 34.24% 6,875,478 8,414,267 (1 ,538,789) -18.29% 
Debt service 5.79% 1,161,619 1,242,641 (81 ,022) -6.52% 

100.00% 20,078,264 21,128,749 (1,050,485) -4.97% 

The General Fund revenue increased by $ 266,064 due to increase in sales tax revenue by more outlet stores. 

The Park/Stonn Water Fund increased by $ 74,959 over the prior year which again is attributable to an 
increase in sale tax $ 48,910 and park program fees revenue. 

Business-type Activities 

In reviewing the current to the past year on the Waterworks and Sewerage Fund and Solid Waste Fund, we 
noted the following: 

Change 
2024 2023 Amount 

Waterworks and Sewerage 
Revenue $ 9,180,213 $ 8,880,407 $ 299,806 

% 

3.38% 
Expense net of Depreciation and interfund 5,877,144 7,323,610 (1 ,446,466) -19.75% 
Operating Income 9,125 978,619 (969,494) 

Solid Waste 
Revenue 1,501,365 1,229,321 272,044 
Expense net of Depreciation and interfund 1,373,322 1,149,191 224,131 
Operating Income 128,043 80,130 47,913 

In business type activities, the increase to operating income for the Waterworks and Sewerage Fund and the 
Solid Waste Fund is due to an increase in rates to provide sufficient income to cover debt payments for 
improvements to the systems and to the reduced time allowed between bills being issued and delinquent 
dates. 
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-99.07% 

22.13% 
19.50% 
59.79% 



GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS 

Over the course of the year the City reviews the adopted budget and revises the estimates to reflect the 
actual revenue and expenses and to make adjustments for unexpected revenues and expenses for items 
such as grants . In 2024 the Marijuana Sales Tax brought in $184,000.00. The sale of the Price Cutter 
Baseball Park produced an additional $330,000.00 as well. Other line items that generated additional 
revenue included the Chadwick Flyer Grant and Governor's Cost Share project. These grants also 
increased expenses. ARP A funds continued to fund remodel projects for the Law Dept., Police Dept., and 
a roof project. A bus was also purchased for the Community Center and parks. Ozark continues to 
increase new businesses locating here and new developments such as Ozark Marketplace. Building 
pe1mits were up significantly in 2024 and this continues to occur in 2025 as well. 

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

On December 31, 2024, the City had$ 126,143,727 invested in capital assets. (See table below). This 
represents an increase of$ 8,275,670 from the prior year. 

CITY OF OZARK'S CAPITAL ASSETS 

(Net of accumulated depreciation) 

Governmental Business-Type 
Activities Activities Totals 

2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 

Land $ 14,047,500 $ 13,923,908 $ 1,612,755 $ 1,612,755 $ 15,660,255 $ 

2023 

15,536,663 
Improvements 32,518,752 30,588,436 32,518,752 30,588,436 
Buildings 13,234,522 13,214,208 352,666 162,388 13,587,188 13,376,596 
Water system 23,635,837 23,561,409 23,635,837 23,561,409 
Waste system 30,765,196 30,678,363 30,765,196 30,678,363 
Machinery & 

Equipment 3,834,928 3,228,227 3,834,928 3,228,227 
Construction 

-in-Progress 1,470,339 506,688 4,671,232 391,675 6,141,571 898,363 

$ 65,106,041 $ 61,461,467 $ 61,037,686 $ 56,406,590 $ 126,143,727 $ 117,868,057 

Additional information on the City's capital assets can be found in Note D of the notes to the financial 
statements of this rep 011. 
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Debt 

At year-end, the City had$ 31,865,997 in outstanding notes as compared to the prior year of$ 34,369,229. 

Governmental Business-type 
Activities Activities Total 

2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 
Revenue Bonds $ - $ $ 5,085,000 $ 6,545,000 $ 5,085,000 $ 6,545,000 
Special assessment debt 32,768 42,758 32,768 42,758 
Certificates of Participation 16,709,838 17,122,434 9,865,000 10,410,000 26,574,838 27,532,434 
Lease & Note Obligations 173,391 249,037 173,391 249,037 

TOTALS $ 16,742,606 $ 17,165,192 $ 15,123,391 $ 17,204,037 $ 31 ,865 ,997 $ 34,369,229 

Additional information on the City's long-tenn debt can be found in Note E of the notes to the financial 
statements of this rep01t. 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEARS BUDGET AND RATES 

ARPA funds have continued to provide funds for much needed I-time projects such as remodels and upgrades 
to existing facilities. The HV AC system at the Community Center has seen a significant upgrade in 2024 and 
2025. We have obligated all ARPA funds, and they will be expensed by the end of 2025. 

The City has numerous continuing Public Works projects for streets, trails, water and sewer projects. The 
Chadwick Flyer Trail is a large and comprehensive project that will eventually join the Ozark Trail System with 
the Springfield Trail System. A groundbreaking ceremony was held in July 2025 to celebrate the beginning of 
construction of the bridge over U.S. Hwy 65 that will continue this project. Carryover projects from 2024 
include the Outer Road/I 8th Street Extension, a Mo. Dept of Economic Development grant is continuing, as is 
the Finley River Trail expansion, a partnership project with the Mo. Dept of Transportation. Also, the Finley 
River Lift Station project, a DNR grant project, is being completed and Phase II, installing a force main, will be 
started. 

In 2024 the City hired a new Human Resource Director, an Asst. City Administrator and created a 
Communications Depai1ment with a staff of three employees. In 2025 we have hired a new Planning & 
Development Director and an IT Manager. These additional employees allow the City to continue to grow and 
be able to provide the services the Citizens want and expect. 

There were several new businesses opened in 2024 and that trend is continuing in 2025. These include hair and 
nail salons, restaurants, publishing business, construction company, chiropractic services, collision repair group, 
carwash service and numerous others. A rehab hospital is under construction as is the Ozark Marketplace, a 
development that will include Aldi's Grocery store. 

12 
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CONTACTING THE CITY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and creditors with a general 
overview of the City' s finances and to show the City's accountability for the money it receives. If you have 
questions about this rep01t or need additional financial infonnation, contact the Finance Director's Office at 205 
No1th 1st Street, Ozark, Missouri. 

13 
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CITY OF OZARK, MISSOURI 
STJ\'IHvll : NT OF NET l'OSITION 

!)J:l:Uvl lH:I~ lL2Jl2:l 

l' ri111 ,ir)· Govcrn111cnt 

Govcrn111cnta l 13usincss-lype 

i\ctivitics i\clivilics Total 

.\SSETS 
Cash aud 1:ash equivalents $ I(,. 759.03 7 $ 5.'185 . 177 $ 22.2,1,1.21 ,1 

Restricted assets-cash and cash cq111vaknts .J_:1 93.208 2.510.202 7.003.410 

/\c1:ounts receivable-

lJlilitics. ncl 651.897 651,897 

Real estate laxes. net 7,J(,. ,J5 S 37.125 783.583 

Sales laxes 878.732 107.434 98(,.166 

Franchise taxcs 1,12 _,19,1 142.'19,I 

Missouri motor li1cl taxes 98.925 98.925 

lnlcn:sl I 07.538 I 07.538 

I.case 1.319.356 1.3 19.356 

Other 32.582 32.582 

lnlcrnal balances ( 169.927) 169.927 

!'repaid ite111s 272.955 162.2:19 :135.204 

Security deposits 11 .776 11.776 

Capital assets: 

Land J,J,0,J7.5ll0 1.6 12.755 15 .660.255 

Conslrnc1ion in progress 1.- 170.339 -1.671 .232 6. 1-11.571 

Other capital assets. net or accrnmilatcd dcpn:cialion -19.588.202 5•1.753.699 J0,U,11.901 

Total 1\ssc1s 89,(,91.637 70.269.235 159.960.872 

DEFERRED Ol iTFLOWS OF llESOt :RCES 

Pension related l .7'1!1.392 979. 163 2.719.555 

Total Dcli:rrcd Out llnws or Rcsoun:cs 1.7-10.392 979. 163 2,719.555 

1.1,\lll I.IT! ES 
i\CCOlllllS payable -153.Cvl5 531.055 98,J.700 

/\c1:rued wagcs and bcnclils I ,JI. I(, 7 66.081 207.2,18 

Unearned rcvcnuc 8:18.258 848.258 

/\ccrucd sales tax and pri111acy li:e 12,607 12,607 

Security deposits 1.916.526 1,916,526 

Court bond and Ji:cs 32.331 32,331 

/\ccrucd interest 124.78 I 288.807 413.588 

Noncurrcnl liabilitics: 

Due within one year ,J 10.,179 2.097.'I 12 2,5 07.891 

Due in nwrc than one year 17 .76(1.122 1-1.585.257 32.351 ,379 

Total Liabilities 21.(,93.309 17.581.219 39.274.528 

DEFERllED !:\FLOWS OF RESOl:llCES 

I.case related 1.2-16.839 1.2,16,839 

Pension rdatcd 8 l.(H2 91 .518 172.560 

Tmal Deli:rn:d lnllows 1.327.88 I 91.518 1.419,399 

\ ET POSITIO:\ 
Ncl inn:sum:nl in capital asscls ,JS.5,J I !183 1 15.822.833 9,J,36<1.316 

Rcslrictecl for: 

l'ark/Stonn Water opnrations (,.837. 1,15 6.837. 1,15 

Capital l111pro,·c111cnts 919.-12(, 919.426 

Dehl sen·icc 1.099.825 1.099.825 

Construcl inn projects 1.19,J.801 1. 194.801 

Unrestricted 12. 112.785 5.458,202 17.570,987 

Total Net Position $ 68.•I 10.839 $ 53.575.661 $ 121 ,986.500 

The acco111panying nn1cs arc an inwgral pan or these linanci<1I s1atc111en1s. 
J,J 



I:unct!!..ws :'JJnllliT!!!!~ 
Cio\'crnmc1Hal acth·itics: 

C.i i:n1;ral g.Il\'crn:IH.·11t 
l'ublir s,dctl': 

1'c1lice 

Court 

StreL·ts 

Parks 

Storm w~tter 

Interest 011 lo11g-1c•m1 debt 

Total g<wcnuni:ntal ;1ctivi1ics 

Business-type a(ti\'ilics: 

\\later 
Sewer 
Sanitation 

Tow\ business-type activities 

llitai Primary Ci ovcmmcnt 

CITY OF OZARK MISSOURi 
ST1\TEi'vll:NT 01' i\CTIVITll:S 

!'OR Tl II •: Yl:i\R END! ' !) DECEMBER 3 I . 2024 

Program Rcvc 11 ues '-:et ([:xpcnsc) Rel'cnue and Changes in ;,.; c1 l'osi1ic1n 

Operating C:tpital Primary Cin,·crnmcnt 

Ch~irgcs for (ira111s and Ci1:m1s and Cio\'cmnH.:ntal llusincss-1,·pc 

I :.~pcnscs Services Contrihuli<ll!S C<111 tribui io11:,; 1\ctivitics t\cti vitics 

s 2.774.302 s 5~'1.453 s 1-l-LI 5~ s 2.5U1. I 56 s 5-l5.-i5 1J s 

-L549. i 13 n6.%7 (~.322.I.J/1) 

23.57-l (23.57.J I 

2.708.290 I ,;I!.;_ 136 ( i . .JO~. I:i-l l 
4.80()_4)3 2j22. J 72 (2.2X7.28 I l 

J(J/,j9/, (1011.5%) 

739.033 (739.1133) 

15 .7 10.36 1 3.338.592 1-14.1 52 3.SS<J.292 I 8.338.325) 

4,017.390 ~J05. l 7(J 335 .0:.p (172.830 

5.2 53.972 -l. 75 4.807 332. I 50 I I 67./J 15) 

1.373.3:!1 1.500./1/1, I ~7.3 -G 
I 0.654.684 I0.1,2n.c1.t7 (167. Jl).j /133. 157 

s 26.365.0-15 s 13.9:-9.2.1'1 s l-l.J . I52 s -L.'.'5().48(, (X.33X.3:!5 I /133.157 

<.icm~ral R~n:nucs 
Propl!rty taxes for gcni:ral puq1osc~ 864.:-04 5 J.881) 

Property taxes for park purposes 252 .279 
Frnnchisl! taxes 8.J.J.223 

Saks taxes I0.1)0(,35.J 1.190.080 

i\•lissouri motor ful'i taxl!s 1. l:i2 .782 
Interest on in,·l!stments 854 .31/0 S75.72 I 

i'vlisccllancous 57.889 60.IJ3 I 

Tran~fcrs 120.0(1(1 ( I20.tl0II) 

Total general rcvcnw:s and transfers 15,052.421 2.058.621 

Change in net position (1.714.096 2.!,IJ I .778 

:\."ct posiIion beginning 61,6%.743 50.883.883 

N~t position ending s 68 . .J I 0.839 s 53,575.661 

The accompanying notes arc an integral part of these fin:mcial statemen ts. 
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Total 

s 5..!5 .~51) 

(-U 22.I .J 11 ·I 

'23.57.JJ 

1 J .• l!J5 . I :i.J I 

I2.2X7.2XI J 

i ltllij%) 

(73 11.033 ) 

< X.338.325) 

(1 72.830 

( J/1 7.0 I 51 

127.3-12 

/133.1 57 

( 7.705.1 (18 ) 

11 I 6.393 

252 .279 

8.J.J.223 

I2.096.-13.J 
1.152.782 

1.730.111 
118.820 

17.! I 1.042 

C/ . .Jt15.874 

I 1258U.626 

s I2 I .lJ86.500 



CITY OF OZARK, iYIISSOUR[ 
13!\Li\NCE SI 11 : l·:T-

GO\11:RNi'vll :NTAL FUNDS 
DITLMBER 31. 20?,J 

Nonmajor 

Fund 
Park/ Capital 

Gem:ral Stor1111Yaler Improvement 

J\SSl.'.TS Fund Funds Fund 
Cash and cash equivalents s ., I I. 752.50,J $ ,1. 19,1.5,12 $ S 11. 99 I 
Restricted assets: Cash and cash equivalents 2.221..382 2.271.82(, 
i\ccounts receivable-

Re,11 estate la)(es C,02.070 I ,J,1.388 
Sales la)( ,199.186 272.111 I 07.435 
Franchise la)( H2.,J9,I 
i'vl issouri motor rucl ta)(e'.; 98.925 
Lease 1.319.356 
Other 32.582 

Due !i·om other runds 510.745 49.849 
Prepaid items 190.(,85 82.270 
Security deposits I I. 776 

Tot.ii 1\ssels s 17.369.929 $ 7.026.7(,2 $ 9 I 9.426 

Ll/\1311 .ITll:S 
J\ccounts payable $ 389.4(,7 s 6,1.178 $ 

/\ccrucd liabilities-
Wages. taxes. a11c! bcnelil s pay,1ble 97.998 "3.169 

Due to other rumls 730.521 
Unearned n:ve11ue 

ARI' ,\ 527.258 
Other-Trail Way C,ra11l 321.000 

Security deposits I. 9 I C, .52(, 

Court bo11ds a11d Ices 32.331 

Total Liabilities 4.015. 101 107.347 

DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES 
Lease re I at cd 1.2,16.839 

Total l)clcrrcd i111lows or resources l.2·16.839 

FUND 131\I.J\NCES 
Fund 13ala11ccs -

No11spc11dablc 190.685 82.270 
Restricted 

l'ark/Stormwatcr operations 6.837. I 115 
Capital Improvements 919.426 

Unassigned 11.917.30,J 

Total Fund Balances 12.107.989 6.919.415 919.426 

TOTJ\L L11\131LITll:S 1\ND FUND 13/\1./\NCES $ 17.3(,9.929 $ 7.026. 762 $ 919.426 

The accompanying notes arc a11 i11tcgral part or these lina11cial statements. 
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Total 
Governmental 

Funds 
$ 16.759.037 

<J.493.208 

7'16.'158 
878.732 
J,12.494 
98.925 

1.3 19.356 
32.5S2 

560.594 
272.955 

I I. 776 

$ 25 .316.117 

$ 453.6•15 

141.167 
730.521 

527.258 
321.000 

1.916,526 
32.331 

4.122.448 

1,246.839 
1.246.839 

272.955 

6.837. 1•15 
919.426 

11.917.304 

19.946,830 

$ 25 .316, 117 



CITY OF OZARK, iVI!SSOURl 
RECONC:ILIJ\TION 01: TI II-: GOVERNMENT 1-'LJNDS 
13/\L;\NCE S1-IEET TO THI~ GOVERNMl~NT-WIDL 

STJ\TUvIENT 01: NET POSITION 
DECEMBER 31. 2024 

Total Fund Balances-Governmental hinds 

Capital assets , net or accumulated depreciation, used in governmental 

activities arc not linancial resources and, therefore. are not reported 

as assets in the governmental l1.111ds. 

Non-depreciable assets 

Depreciable assets 

Certain amounts arc not a use or linancial resources and. thererorc, 

arc not reported in the gove rnmental fund s. These items consist or: 

Net pension liabiiity 

Deferred outllows - pension related 

Del'errcd inllows - pension related 

Long-term liabilities and deferred outflows arc not due and payable in the 

current period and . the refore, are not reported as liabilities in the 

governmental fund s . 

Del'erred amount 0 11 refunding 

Long-term liabilities at year-end consist or: 

Compensated absences 

Debt 

Accrued interes t 

Net position or governmental activities 

15.517,839 
49,588,202 

( 1.351.048) 
1,740,392 

(81,042) 

178,048 

(260,995) 
(16,742,606) 

(124,781) 

The accompanying notes arc an integral part of these financial statements. 
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$ 19,946,830 

65 ,106,041 

308,302 

(16,950,334) 

$ 68,410,839 



CITY OF OZARK, MISSOURI 
STA l"l:ivll ·:NT 0 1: RJ-:\11:'.NU l·:S. 

1:x 1>1 -:N DITURl·:S. ;\ NI) Cl lt\ N(i l·:S IN FlJNI) 13/\Lt\ NC l·:s -
CiOVERN ivlENTt\l. FUNDS 

FOR Tl IE Yl :1\R l:NDED Dl:CEMBER 31. 2024 

Nonmajor 
Fund 

Park/ Capital 
Gc.:neral Storm waler Improvement 

REV ENUES Fund Funds Fund 
Taxes: 

Properly taxes $
. ., 8(i,J.50:I $ 252.279 $ 

.. . 
Franchise taxes 81l11.223 
Sales taxes 6.Ci39.722 3.076.551 I. 190.081 

lntergovc.: rnmenlal reve nue: 
Missouri motor rue! taxes 1. 152.782 

Licensc.:s & permits .J,J,J.320 
Charges J'or servicc.:s 

!'ark programs 2.:J:16.:133 
Police services 90.:139 

Fines & forli.:itun;s 136.528 
Interest 669.680 J 8,1.710 
Grants -1 .. ederal 2.1188.049 98.107 
Grants -State.: 7:1.392 69.760 
Renls 1,15.133 75 .739 
Developers contribu1ions 1.303.13(> 
ivl is eel laneous 51.20 I (i.688 

Total Re venues J,J.9()11.109 6.210.267 1.190,081 

EXPEN DITURl ·: S 
Current: 

General govcrnmc.:nl 2.205.'172 
Police 11.260.673 
Court 22 _;191I 
Streets 1233.037 
!'arks :J.2(i0.209 
Storm waler 53 .282 

Capital outlay 5.2 10.7 11 I .6Ci1I. 767 
Debt sc.:rvicc.:: 

Principal rc.:lirc.:mc.:nl 9.990 ,1 l2.59(i 
lmcn.:sl and liscal agcnl Ii.:es 1.929 737. 101I 

Total Expenditures 12,950.306 7.127.958 

EXCESS OF RJ:VENUl ·:S OVER (UNDl:'. R) 
EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER 
F!Nt\NCING SOURCl·:S (Usr:s) 1.953.803 (917.69 1) 1, 190.081 

OTI IER FINANCING SOURCJ·:S (USES) 
Transli.:rs from other runtls 1.170.000 1.042.650 
Sale or assets 357.825 
Translcrs {lo) other J'untls (992.650) (50,000) ( 1.050.000) 

Total Other Sources (Uses) 535.175 992.650 ( 1.050.000) 

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER (UN Dl·:R) 
EXPENDITURES /\ND CHI 11:R 
f'IN/\NCING SOURCES (lJSl ·: S) 2.'188,978 74.959 140.081 

FUND 13/\Lt\NCES - 13ECilNNINCi 9.6 19.01 I 6.844.456 779.3 115 

FUND 13 1\L/\NCl·:S - 1:N DI NG $ 12. 107.989 S .. 
- 6.919.415 $ 919.426 

The accompanying notes arc an intc.:gral parlor lhc.:se linancial slalcmenls. 
18 

Total 
Govcrnmcnlal 

Funds 

$ I. I I 6.783 
8411.223 

I 0.906.354 

1.1 52.782 
,JiJ ,J.320 

2.'146.'133 
90.439 

136.528 
85'1.390 

2.586.156 
14:1.152 
220.872 

1.303.136 
57.889 

22.31MA57 

2.205.472 
4.266.673 

22.494 
1.233.037 

11.260.209 
53.282 

6.875.'178 

:122.586 
739.033 

20.078.264 

2.226,193 

2.212.650 
357.825 

(2,092.650) 
477.825 

2.704.018 

17.242.812 

$ 19.9116.830 



CITY OF OZARK, IYIISSOURI 
RECONCILIATION OF STATL~MENT OF REVENUES, 

EXPENDITURES, AND CI-IJ\NGES IN FUND BALANCES 
TO THE STJ\TEl'vll~NT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR Tl-IE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3 I. 2024 

Net change in fund balances--total governmental runds $ 2,704,018 
Amounts reported for govern111enta/ activities in the statement 

or activities arc different because: 

Governmental runds report capital outlays as expenditures . 
However. in the statement of activities the cost or those assets 
is allocated over their estimated uscrul lives and reported as 
depreciation expense. 

Capital outlays 
Depreciation expense 
Basis of asset sold 

Bond proceeds provide current linancial resources Lo governmental 
funds, but issuing debt increases long-term liabilities in the same 
statement of net position. Repayment of bond principal is an 
expenditure in the governmental funds, but the repayment reduces 
long-term liabilitil:s in the statement of net position. 

Debt payments or principal 

Some expenses reported in the slatemcnl of activities do not require the 
use or current financial resources and therefore, arc not reported 
as expenditures in governmental funds. 

Compensated absences 
Pension expense 
Amortization of deferred amount on refunding 

Change in net position or governmental activities 

6,875,478 
(2,493.516) 

(737,388) 

422,586 

(4,396) 
(37,848) 
( I 4,838) 

$ 6,714,096 

The accompanying notes arc an integral part or these financial statements. 
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CITY OF OZARK, MISSOURI 
ST,\Tl:M l:NT (JI' NET l'OSITION-

l'ROl'Rll:T,\RY FUNDS 
Dl:Cl:i'vllll:R 31. 2024 

W:11crworks and Nonmajor Fund 

W:1sll'\\'alcr Solid Waste 

ASSETS Fund Fund Total 

Current assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents :ii 
.. 

- 5 . .-105.5% $ 79,581 $ 5.4 85. 177 

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 

llond rcscr\'cs 1,3 15.40 I 1.31 5.'10 1 

Cons1ruc1ion 1.19-1.801 1,19<1.801 

Receivables : 

1\ccounls rccei vablcs. ncl 556.907 94.990 65 1.897 

Properly ta xes 37. 125 37.125 

ln1crcs1 S!ff I 07.538 107.538 

Sales lax 107.-1311 107.434 

Due !'rom other lt111ds 128.791 ,11 .136 169.927 

Prepaid items 162.2119 162.249 

Total Current i\sscls 9,015.8-12 215.707 9,231.549 

Noncurrenl asset s· 

Capital assets : 

I.and I.(, 12.755 l.(i I 2.755 

Construt..:tiun in progress "-C,7 '-232 •l.671.232 

Other capital assc1s. ncl or acc11rn11latcd dcpr,·cia1ion 5,1.753.!,')') 5-1.753.699 

Total Noncurrenl Assets 

Total t\sscls 

Dclcrrcd. Outtlowor Resources 

Pension related 

Total Delcrrcd Oulllo\\'s 

1.11\llll.lTll:S 

Current liabilities: 

J\ccou nls payable 

Accrued w:tgl'S 

Accrued sales wx anU primai.:y fee 

Accrued interest 

Dehl due \\'ilhin one year 

Compensated absences 

Total Current Liabilities 

Noncurrent liabilities: 

Debi due in more than one year 

Net pension li:.tbili ty 

Compensa ted absences 

Customer deposits 

Total Noncurrcnl Liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

Dclcrred lnllowsor Resources 

Pension rdated 

Total Dclcrred lnllows 

]~ET l'OSITl(lli 

Net i11ws1111cn1 in capital assets 

Restricted li.,r-

Debi reserves 

Construction projects 

Unrestricted 

Total Net Position 

(, 1.03 7 ,(186 351 .833 61.037,<,86 

70.()53.528 567.540 70.269.235 

979. 163 979.163 
979. 1(,3 979.163 

397.98,J 133.071 531 .()55 

66.081 M,.0SI 

12.!,07 12.607 

288.807 288.807 

2.086 . .-112 2.086,412 

11.000 11 ,000 

2.862.891 133,071 2,995.962 

13.1 28.44 1 13,128,4<1 I 

<,•11..-llM (,..J 1.404 
l)')_(l(){) 99,000 

71(, .. , 12 716,'l 12 

I ,1,585,257 14.585,257 

17,448. 1 •18 133,071 17.58 1.219 

9 1.5 I 8 91 ,518 

91,518 91.51 S 

~15.822.833 45,822,833 

1.099.825 1,099,825 

1.l 'J:1.801 1. 194.S0 I 

5,375.56(, 82,636 5,458.202 

$ 53 ,493 ,025 $ 82,636 $ 53 ,575,661 

The Jccompanying lll>ll!S arc an intl'gral pan of these linancial slatcments. 
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CITY OF OZARK, MISSOURI 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES. 

EXPENSES AND CI-1/\NGES IN NET POSITION -

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

FOR THE YE/\R ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2024 

Nonma_jor Fund 

Waterworks and Solid Waste 
OPERATING REVENUES: Wastewater Fund hind 

Charges for services $ 8,466,496 $ 1,500,664 

I-lookups and reconnect lees 594.197 

Inspections 59.290 

iVliscellaneous income 60,230 701 
Total Operating Revenue 9, 180,213 1,501 ,365 

OPERATING EXPENSES : 

Wages and benefits 3.203 ,704 

Insurance 280,414 

Repairs and maintenance 827.861 

Utilities 929.571 

Contracted reruse hauling and other expense 1,373.322 

/\ 11 other expense 635.594 

Depreciation 2,693 ,944 

Total Operating 1-::x penses 8,571,088 1,373,322 

OPERATING INCOIVII -: 609.125 128,043 

NON-OPl ~R/\TING REVENUES (EXPENSES): 

Properly taxes 51,889 

Sales taxes 1.190.080 

Loss on sale of assets (144,791) 

Interest income-checking and savings 875,721 

Interest expense and agent fees (565,483) 

Total NonLoperating Revenues 1,407.416 

INCOME BEFORE TRANSFERS /\ND 

CAPITAL CONTRll3UTIONS 2,016,541 128,043 

CAPITAL TRANSFERS /\ND CONTRIL3UTIONS 

Capital contributions 667,194 

Transfers (120,000) 
Total 667,194 (120,000) 

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 2,683,735 8,043 

TOTAL NET POSITION - l3EGINNING 50,809.290 74.593 

TOTAL NET POSITION - l~NDING $ 53,493,025 $ 82,636 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Total 

$ 9,967,160 

594, 197 

59,290 

60,931 

10,681,578 

3,203,704 

280,414 

827,861 

929,571 

1,373 ,322 

635,594 

2,693 ,944 

9,944,410 

737, 168 

51,889 

1, 190,080 

(144,791) 

875,721 

(565,483) 

1,407,416 

2,144,584 

667,194 
(120,000) 

547,194 

2,691,778 

50,883,883 

$ 53,575,661 



CITY OF OZARK, MISSOURI 
STATr:iVIENT OF Ci\S I I Fl.O\VS 

l'ROPRll·T1\R Y 1:UNDS 
FOi{ Tl 11 : YEi\R l:NDl:D Dl:CE1vllll:I{ 3..J.., 2024 

Nonmajor Fund 
Watcnrnrks and Solid Waste 
Scwcra!!c Fund Fund 

Ci\SH FI.O\VS FROM O1'1:R!\TING 1\ CTIVITll.:S: 
Receipts from customers $ 9.180.213 s 1.501.365 
l'~ymcnls Ill suppliers (2.606,497) ( 1.328, 133) 
l'ay111cnts lo employees (3.203 .704) 

Net Cash l'nwitkd by Operating ,\c tivitics 3.370.012 173.232 

Ci\Sl-1 FLOWS FROivl NONCJ\l'IT,\I. 1\CTIVIIT1'S: 
Transl'crs (lo) ( 120.000) 
Property taxes 51.889 
Sales taxes 1. 190.080 

Net Cash l'rnvicled by ( Used lt>r) Noncapital /\clivitics 1.2111.969 ( 120.000) 

C1\SI-I FLOWS FROM C!\P IT/\1. !\ND 
RELi\TED FINi\NCING 1\CTIVIT!l:S: 

Capital contributions 667. 19,1 
l'ay111cnts ltn· capital acquisitions (7.'169,931) 
Principal Repayments (2,084 .718) 
Interest paid (565.483) 

Net Cash ( Used !tu') Capital and Related 
Financing 1\c1ivi1ics (9.452.938) 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING J\CTIVITIES: 
Interest earned 875,721 

Net C.1sh Prnvidcd by Investing 1\ctivitics 875.721 

NET C1\SI t (DITRl:i\Sf:) INCIZl:/\SI: l·OR Tl 11' Yl:/\R (3,965.236) 53.232 

C1\Sl·I i\T lll:GINNING OF YF,\ll I 1.88 I _03,1 26.3,19 

Ci\SII ,\TEND OF Yl:/\R $ 7,915.798 $ 79,581 

SUl'vll'v11\RY OF CASI I /\ND C/\SII 1:QLJIVJ\1.1:NTS 
Cash and cash cquivaknts $ 5.405.5% $ 79.581 
Reslrictccl assets-Cash and cash equivalc111s 2.510.202 

$ 7.915.798 $ 79.5S1 

Reconciliation ol'opcrating incrnm: (loss) to net cash 
provided hy operating activities: 
Operating lnco1m: $ 609,125 $ 128.043 
/\cljustmcnls lo reconcile ncl ,ipcrating income 

10 net cash provided by operating act ivities: 
Depreciation expcnsc· 2.693,9-14 
(Increase) Decrease in accounts receivable 26,661 6.104 
(Increase) Decrease in clue from nther l'unds 5.530 (5 ,530) 
(Increase) Decrease in prepaid items (36,555) 
(Increase) Decrease in pensions (69.622) 
Increase (Decrease) in accounts payable 128,095 44.615 
Increase (Dccrcasc) in accrued wages and bcnclits 7.556 
Increase (Dccrc,1sc) in nther liabilities (10.'ll'J) 
lncreas.: in customer deposits 15.697 

Net Cash l'rnvidcd by Operating 1\c1ivi1ics $
. ., 3,370.012 $ 173.232 

Thc accompanying notes arc an inll:grnl part of'thcsc linancial slatcmcnts. 
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Tot~I 

$ 10.681.578 
{3,93il.630) 
(3 .203.704) 

3_5,13.2,14 

(120,000) 
51.889 

1.190,080 

1.121.969 

667. I 94 
(7.469.931) 
(2 ,0S4.718) 

(565.483) 

(9.452,938) 

875,721 
875,721 

(3 .912.004) 

11.907.383 

$ 7,995.379 

$ 5.485, 177 
2.510,202 

$ 7.995,379 

$ 737,168 

2.693.944 
32,765 

(36,555) 
(69,622) 
172.710 

7.556 
(10,419) 

15.697 

$ 3,543,244 



CITY OF OZARK, MISSOURI 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

J2ECllfYIL3CR 31. 2024 

NOTE A-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The linancial statements or the City of Ozark, Missouri, (the City) were prepared in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States or America for governmental 
entities (U.S. GAAi'). The following su111111ary or the more significant policies of the City is 
presented to assist the reader in interpreting these linancial statements and should be viewed as an 
integral part ol'this report. 

THE REPORTING ENTITY 

The City or Ozark . i\ilissouri., was incorporated August 3. 1888. The City operates under a form of 
government which is comprised or an elected Board of Aldermen and an elected mayor. As 
authori1.ccl by its charter, the City provides the li.)llowing services: public salcty (police) higln,vay 
and streets, water, sewer. sanitation, public improvements, recreation, 1.oning and planning, and 
general administrative services . The accompanying basic linancial statements include the 
transactions oral! or the City's runds. The City's funds arc established under statutory authority. 

Entity status for linancial reporting purposes is governed by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GJ\Sl3). The GJ\Sl3 is the standard-setting body for the establishment of GAAP 
in governmental entities. The financial statements of the City present the financial activities of the 
City and any CCl111ponent units. The City is the primary governnient unit. Component units arc 
those entities which arc financially accountable to the primary government , either because the City 
appoints a voting majority or the component unit's Board or because the component unit will 
provide a financial benefit or impose a financial burden on the City. The financial statements are 
formatted to allow the user to clearly distinguish between the primary government and its 
component units. 

Blended component units 

Ozark Public Funding Corporation (PFC) and Land Clearam:c for Redevelopment Authority 
(LRCJ\) arc, in substance, the same as the Govl!rnmcnt, as their boards arl! appointed by mayor and 
council. In additio11, they receive all their li.111di11g from the City which is used to pay off long term 
debt. Therefore .. they are reported as part or the primary government included in the General Fund. 
They have a governing body that is substantially the same as the governing body of the 
Government; provide services entirely, or almbst entirely, to the Government; or otherwise 
exclusively, or almost exclusively, benefit the Government even though they do not provide 
services directly to the Government 

n~~1rk Jl11b_l_ic_; Lill~liDg_Corpor!.!1i9JLC1~tC.) -- The Ozark Public Funding Corporation of the City of 
Ozark. l'vl issouri , is a not-for-pro lit corporation duly organized and existing under the General Not­
For-Profit Corporation, Chapter 355 or the Revised Statutes of Missouri , 1986 as amended, for the 
purpose of bencliting and carrying out the purpose of the City of Ozark, Missouri , by providing for 
the acquisition, construction, improvement, extension, repair, remodeling, renovation and financing 
of municipal sites, buildings, l"acilities, rurnishings and equipment for the use or the City. 



CITY OF OZARK, MISSOURI 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31. 2024 

NOTE A- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLIClES (Continued) 

THE REPORTING ENTITY- continued 

Land Clearance For Redevelopment Authority of'lhc City of Ozark, Missouri (LCRA)-The LCRA 
was formed under sections 99.3 00 to 99.660 or RSMo 1994, the ·'Land Clearance for 
Redevelopment Authority Law." It was apprnved by voters on 1-'cbruary 3, 2004. The LCRA is a 
legally separate entity whose purpose is to eliminate blight within the City limits by acquiring and 
preparing land f'or redevelopment. All !'uncling for loan repayments comes from the City. 

The City has determined that no other outside agency meets the above criteria and, therefore, no 
other agency has been included as a component unit in the City's financial statements. In addition, 
the City is 1101 aware or any entity which would exercise such oversight which would result in the 
City being considered a component unit of the entity. 

GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The government-wide financial statements (i .e., the state111enl or net position and the statement of 
activities) report infor111ation on all activities or the City. For the most part. the effect of interfund 
activity has been rc111ovcd from these stalc111enls . Government-wide financial statements do not 
provide information by rund but distinguish between the City's governmental activities and 
business-type activities. Govcrn111ental activities, which normally arc supported by taxes and 
intergovernmental revenues, arc reported separately fro111 business-type activities, which rely to a 
significant extent on Ices and charges for support. 

The statement or activities demonstrates the degree lo which the direct expenses of a given function 
arc offset by progra111 revenues. Direct expenses arc those that are clearly identifiable with a 
specific function. Program revenues include I) charges lo customers or applicants who purchase, 
use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function and 2) 
grants and contributions that arc restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a 
particular runction . Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues arc 
reported inst.cad as general revenues. 

Fund financial statements. Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds 
and proprietary f11 .nds. Separate columns arc presented for each major governmental fund and for 
each major enterprise fund. Non-major runds arc aggregated and presented in a single column 
labeled ''Nonnrnjor Governmental Funds." 

Governmental Fund Types: Governmental fi.mds arc those through which most governmental 
li.mctions or the City arc financed. The acquisition, use and balances of the City's expendable 
financial resources and the related liabilities (other than those in proprietary funds) arc accounted 
for through governmental funds. The following are the City's m,~jor governmental funds: 

Gcncr.i.!lJ)md - The General Fund is the government's primary operating fund . It is used to account 
ror all l'inancial resources except those requ ired to be accounted for in another fund. 

24 



CITY OF OZARK, MISSOURI 
NOTES TO l3ASIC FINANCIAL STATEM[NTS 

DECEMBER 31. 2024 

NOTE A-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Special Revenue Funds: Special Revenue Funds arc used to account for the proceeds of the specific 
revenue sources that arc either legally restricted to expenditures for specified purpose or designated 
to finance particular runctions or activities or the City. The reporting entity includes the following 
special revenue runds: 

Park/Storm Water Fund - This fund is combines under one group heading as they all relate 
to park improvement and operations and arc used exclusively for the following: 

Pool Fund - Accounts for taxes received that arc legally restricted for pool 
recreational services, grants and revenues received and expenditures paid for 
recreational services provided by the pool. 

Park Fund - · Accounts lc.ir taxes received that arc legally restricted for recreational 
services, grants and donations, and revenues received, and expenditures paid for 
recreational service provided by the park department. 

Park/Stormwatcr Sales Tax Fund - Accounts for sales taxes that arc legally 
restricted for use by the park and for storm water control. . 

Park Impact Fee Fund - Accounts for the park impact Ices legally restricted for 
park equipment and facilities. 

Proprietai·y Fund Types: Proprietary funds arc used to account for the City's ongoing activities 
that arc similar to those often found in the private sector. The following are the City's major 
proprietary Cunds: 

[ntcrprisc_Funds: r~ntcrprisc funds arc used to account for business-like activities provided to the 
general public. These activities arc financed primarily by user charges, and the measurement of 
financial activity focuses on net income measurement similar to the private sector. The repo11ing 
entity includes the rollowing enterprise funds: 

Waterworks and Sewerage Fund: Accounts for the operation of the water and sewer system 
of the City. 

Solid Waste Fund: Accounts for the operations of the sanitation services of the City. 

Nonmajor Fund Types: 

~pita I Improvement Fund -This fund is used exclusively for the revenues of and expense from the 
1/, cent capital improvement sales tax legally restricted for various capital improvement projects. 

25 



CITY OF OZARK, MISSOURI 
NOTES TO BASIC 1:1NANCI/\L STATEMENTS 

Dl~CEMBER 31. 2024 

NOTE A-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING J>OLICIES (Continued) 

MEASlJREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 

The government-wide financial statements arc reported using the economic resources measurement 
focus and the accrual basis or accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial statements. 
Revenues arc recorded when earned and expenses arc recognized at the time liabilities are incurred, 
regardless or when the related cash transaction takes place. Noncxchangc transactions, in which the 
City gives or receives value without directly receiving or giving equal value in exchange, include 
properly taxes, grants and donations. On an accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is 
recognized in the ri scal year for which the taxes arc levied . Revenue from grants and donations are 
recognized in the liscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied. 

Governmental fund financial statements arc reported using the current financial resources 
measurement locus and the modi lied accrual basis or· accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon 
as they arc both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are 
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. 
For this purpose, the City considers revenues to be available if they arc collected within 30 days of 
the end or the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally arc recorded when a liability is incurred, 
as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to 
compensated absences, claims, and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due. 

Property taxes. rranchisc taxes, sales tax, intcrgovcrnrncntal taxes, and investment income 
associated with the current liscal period arc all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have 
been recognized as revenues or the current fiscal period. /\II other revenue items arc considered to 
be measurable and available only when cash is received by the City. 

As a general rule the effect or interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide 
financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are charges between the City ' s water, sewer, 
and solid waste function and various other functions of the City. Elimination of these charges 
would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported le.Jr the various functions concerned. 

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, 
services, or privileges provided; 2) operating grants and contributions; and 3) capital grants and 
contributions, including special assessments. General revenues include all taxes. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating 
revenues and expenses generally result from providing. services and producing and delivering goods 
in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operation, the principal operating 
revenues 01· the enterprise fund are charges for services. Operating. expenses for the enterprise fund 
include the cost or sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. 

/\II revenues and expenses not meeting this definition arc reported as nonopcrating revenues and 
expenses. 
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CITY OF OZARK, MISSOURI 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DI::CEMl3L::R 31. 2024 

NOTE A-SlJiVIiVIARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICmS (Continued) 

MEASURI~MENT FOCUS AND BASJS OF ACCOUNTING - continued 

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION/FUND BALANCE 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

The City pools cash resources or its various li.mds in order to racilitate the management of cash. 
Cash applicable to a particular rund is readily identiliable. The balance in the pooled cash account 
is available lo meet current operating requirements. 

Cash balances from the majority or funds recorded as restricted accounts are pooled for investment 
purposes. Earnings from such investments are allocated to the respective funds based on applicable 
cash participation by each fund. The investment pools arc managed such that all participating funds 
have the ability to deposit and withdraw cash as if they were demand deposit accounts, and 
Lhcrcforc all balances representing participants ' equity in the investment pools are classified as cash 
equivalents for purposes or these statements. For investments which are held separately from the 
pools, those which arc highly liquid (including restricted assets) with an original or rcma1n111g 
maturity or 90 days or less when purchased arc considered to be cash equivalents. 

Statement of Cash Flows 

For cash f1ow statement purposes, the City considers all highly liquid debt instruments purchased 
with a maturity or three months or less to be cash equivalents. 

Investments 

Missouri State statutes authorize the City to invest in obligations of the U.S . Treasury, federal 
agencies, commercial paper, corporate bonds, and repurchase agreements. Investments arc stated at 
cost. 

Due to and due from other funds 

lntcrfund receivables and payables arise from intcrfund transactions and arc recorded by all funds 
affected in the pcriod in which transactions are executed. 
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CITY OF OZARK, MISSOURI 
NOTES TO L3/\SIC FINJ\NCl/\L STATEMLNTS 

DECEMB ER 3 L 2024 

NOTE A- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Accounts Receivable and Allowances 

/\II receivables were stated at gross because the amounts were collected within the following 30 
clays except lor solid waste, water and sevvcr utilities receivable which had $ $ 9,789 for water and 
sewer.$ 2.637 fr>r solid waste, and $ 18,861 for property taxes as allowances for doubtful accounts . 
J\n estimated amount has been recorded for services rendered, but not yet billed, as of the close of 
the year. 

Prepaid items 

Payments made lo vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond the fiscal year-end arc 
recorded as prepaid items. The cost or governmental fund-type prcpaicls is recorded as an 
expenditure when consumed rather than when purchased. 

Restricted assets 

Enterprise Funds. because or certain bond covenants, arc required to establish and maintain 
prescribed amounts or· resources (consisting of cash and temporary investments) that can be used 

_only to serv ice outstanding. debt. The bond account is used only for the payment of principal and 
interest on revenue bonds. The depreciation and replacement account is to be expended only for 
repairs or repla-:ements to the water and sewer fund. The bond reserve account is to be used only 
to pay bonds at maturity or interest as it becomes due and to the extent other funds arc not 
available for this purpose. 

Certain General Fund monies arc classified as restricted assets on the Statement or Net Position 
and Balance Sheet because their use is limited by covenants of the lease agreement. The reserve 
account is lo be used solely for the purpose or making lease payments on the applicable due dates 
when and to the extent other funds arc not available for this purpose. The lease payment account is 
used only for the payment or the principal and interest on the lease obligation . 

Inventories 

The City does not maintain material amounts of supplies and maintenance materials; therefore, no 
inventory amount is reflected in the linancial statements. Inventories arc recorded as 
expenditures/expenses al the time of purchase, and , therefore, no balances for inventory on hand 
arc reported in the statements. 
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CITY OF OZARK, MISSOURI 
NOTES TO 8/\SIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31. 2024 

NOTE A-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Capital Assets and Depreciation 

Capital assets, which include properly, equipment, and infrastructure (e.g., roads, bridges, 
sidewalks, and similar items), arc reported in the applicable governmental or business-type 
activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets arc defined by the 
City as assets with an initial cost of more than$ 2,500 and an estimated uscrul life in excess of one 
year. Such assets arc recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or 
constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at acquisition value at the date of donation. The 
costs or normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially 
extend assets ' lives arc not capitalized. Improvements arc capitalized and depreciated over the 
remaining uscf'ul lives of the related capital assets, as applicable. 

Depreciation has been provided over the estimated useful lives using the straight-line method or 
depreciation . The estimated useful lives for each major class or depreciable capital assets arc as 
follows: 

L3uilclings 
l3uilding improvements 
Utility plant and extensions 
In frastruclurc 
Machinery. rurniture and equipment 
Vehicles 

Bond Premiums/Discounts, and Issuance Costs 

20-50 years 
I 5-20 years 
33-40 years 
I 0-40 years 
3-10 years 
5-10 years 

In the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, bond premiums and discounts 
arc deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-line method, a method v,1hich 
approximates the elTective interest method. Bonds payable arc reported net of the applicable bond 
premium or discount. Bond issuance costs arc expensed in the period in which the debt is issued. 

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, 
as well as bond issuance costs, during the period in which the debt is issued. The face amount of 
debt issued, and any related premiums or discounts are repo1ied as other financing sources/uses. 
Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt 
service expenditures during the year they arc incurred. 

Deferred Outflows of Resources/Loss on Refunded Debt 

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes repo1t a separate section 
for deferred outllows of resources. This separate financial statement clement, deferred outflows 
<~[ resources. represents a consumption of net assets that applies to a future period(s) and so will 
not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expcnsc/cxpcncliture) until then. At this lime, the 
Ci Ly has two items that meet the definition of deferred outflows of resources . One is the deferred . 
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CITY OF OZARK, MISSOURI 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31. 2024 

NOTE A-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

charge on rcrunding reported in the government-wide statement or net position and the statement of 
net position ror proprietary runds. A deferred charge on refunding results from the difference in the 
carrying value or refunded debt and its reacquisition price. This amount is deferred and amortized 
over the shorter or the life of the refunded or refunding debt. The second is the amount related lo 
pension outnows as per GASB 68 . 

Defc1-red Inflows of Resources/Unavailable Revenue 

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate 
section ror deferred inAows or resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred 
influws o/reso11rces , represents an acquisition of net assets that applies to a future period (s) and 
so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The government has 
two types or items that qualify for reporting in this category. One is in the governmental funds 
which is unavailable revenues from one source: real estate laxes. This amount is deferred and 
recognized as an inllow of resources in the period that the amount becomes available. The second 
item is in the Governmental Activities as related to pension inAows as per GASB 68 . 

Obligation for Bond Arbitrage Rebate 

Pursuant to Section 148(1) of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code, the City must rebate to the United 
State Government the excess of interest earned from the investment of certain debt proceeds and 
pledged revenues over the yield rate of the applicable debt. Arbitrage rebate, if any, is due and 
payable on each live-year anniversary of the respective debt issue. As of December 31 , 2024, the 
City had no outstanding arbitrage rebate liability. 

Vacation, sick leave, and other compensated absences 

City employees arc entitled to ce1iain compensated absences based on their length of employment. 
All vacation and sick pay is accrued when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary fund 
financial statements . A liability for these amounts is reported in the governmental funds only if 
they have matured, for example, as a result of employee resignations and retirements. 

Pensions 

For purposes or measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net 
position of the Missouri Local Government Employees Retirement System (LAGERS) and 
additions to/deductions from LAGERS fiduciary net position have been determined on the same 
basis as they arc reported by LAGERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of 
employee contributions) arc recognized when clue and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. 
Investments arc reported at fair value. 
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NOTES TO BASIC FINJ\NCIJ\L STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31. 2024 

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Fund Balances-Governmental Funds 

As of December 3 I, 2024, fund balances of the governmental funds arc classified as follows: 

Non-spendable-This classification includes amounts that cannot be spent either because 
they arc not in a spendable form or because they are legally or contractually required to 
be maintained intact. 

Restricted-This classification includes amounts that can be spent only for specific 
purposes because of the City Charter, City Code, state or lederal laws, or externally 
imposed conditions by grantors or creditors. 

Committed-This classification includes amounts that can be used only for specific 
purposes determined by a formal action by the City Council. Such formal action may be in 
the form of an ordinance and may only be modified or rescinded by a subsequent formal 
action. 

Assigned-This classification is used by the government for specific purposes but does not 
mccl the criteria to be classified as committed . The governing council (council) has by 
resolution authorized the finance director to assign fund balance. The council may also 
assign rund balance as it docs when appropriate fund balance to cover a gap betv,1een 
estimated revenue and appropriations in the subsequent year's appropriated budget. 
Unlike commitments, assignments generally only exist temporarily. 

Unassigned-This classification represents the residual positive balance within the 
c_;cneral Fund, which has not been restricted, committed, or assigned. In funds other than 
the General Fund, unassigned fund balances are limited to negative residual balances. 

When an expenditure is incurred l'or purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund 
balances is available , the City considers restricted funds to have been spent first. When an 
expenditure is incurred for which committed, assigned, or unassigned fund balances are available, 
the City considers amounts to have been spent first out of committed funds, then assigned funds, 
and finally unassigned funds , as needed, unless the City Council has provided otherwise in its 
commitment or assigned actions. 

The fund balance of the City's General Fund has accumulated cash to provide stability and 
flexibility to respond to unexpected adversity and/or opportunities. Currently the General Fund 
has set aside$ 1,826,279. 
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31. 2024 

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Net Position 

Net position represents the difference between assets and deferred outilows of resources, and 
liabilities and deferred inflows or resources. Net investment in capital assets consists of cost of 
capital assets. net or accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any 
borrowing used for the acquisition, construction or improvement or those assets. This net 
investment in capital assets amount also is adjusted by any bond issuance deferral amounts . Net 
position is reported as restricted when there arc limitations imposed on its use either through the 

enabling legislation adopted by the City or through external restrictions imposed by creditors, 
grantors or laws or regulations or other governments. All other net position is reported as 
unrestricted. 

The City applies restricted resources first when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both 
restricted and unrestricted net assets are available. 

Restrictions of Net Position 

The City records restrictions to indicate that a po1tion or the net position is legally segregated for a 
specific future use . The following details the description and amounts of all restrictions used by the 
City as or December 3 1. 202:1: 

Proprietary Fund Types-Business Type Activities 

Waterworks and Sewerage Svstem fund 

Debt reserve 

Construction projects 
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CITY OF OZARK, MISSOURI 
NOTI::S TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31. 2024 

NOTE A-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Leases 

Lessee: The City of Ozark is a lessee for a noncancellablc lease of vehicles. The City of Ozark 
recognizes a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset in the government-wide 
financial statements. The City of Ozark recognizes lease liabilities with an initial , individual value 
of$ 5,000 or more. 

At the co111111cncc111cnt or a lease, the City of Ozark initially measures the lease liability at the 
present value or payments expected to be made during the lease term. Subsequently, the lease 
liability is reduced by the principal portion of lease pay111ent made. The lease asset is initially 
measured as the initial amount of the lease liability, adjusted for lease payments made at or before 
the lease co111111encc111ent date, plus certain initial direct costs. Subsequently, the lease asset is 
amortized on a straight-line basis over its useful life. 

Key esti111atcs and judgements related to leases include how the City or Ozark deter111incs (I) the 
discount rate it uses lo discount the expected lease pay111cnts to present value, (2) lease term, and (3) 
lease payments. 

o The City or Ozark uses the interest rate charged by the lessor as the discount rate. 
When the interest rate charged by the lessor is not provided, the City of Ozark 
generally uses its esti111atcd incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate for leases. 

• The lease 1er111 includes the noncancellablc period of the lease. Lease pay111ents 
included in the measurement of the lease liability arc composed of fixed payments and 
purchase option price that the City of Ozark is reasonably certain to exercise 

The city or Ozark monitors changes in circumstances that would require a remeasurement of its 
lease and will remeasure the lease asset and liability if certain changes occur that arc expected to 
significantly affect the a111ount of the lease liability. 

Lease assets arc reported with other capital assets and lease liabilities are repo1ted with long-term 
debt on the statement of net position. 

Lessor: the City of Ozark is a lessor for a noncancellable lease of tower space. The City recognizes 
a lease receivable and a deferred inl1ow of resources in the waterworks fund and the business-type 
activities. 

At the commencement of a lease, the City of Ozark initially measures the lease receivable at the 
present value of payments expected to be received during the lease term. Subsequently, the lease 
receivable is reduced by the principal portion or lease payments received. The deferred inflow of 
resources is initially measured as the initial amount of the lease receivable, adjusted for lease 
payments received at or before the lease commencement date. Subsequently, the deferred inflow of 
resources is recognized as revenue over the life of the lease term . 

..,.., 
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DECEMBER 31. 2024 

NOTE A-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Leases-continued 

Key estimates and judgements include how the City of Ozark determines (I) the discount rate it 
uses to discount the expected lease receipts to present value, (2) lease term , and (3) lease receipts . 

" The City of Ozark uses its estimated incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate for 
leases. 

o The lease term includes the noncancellable period or the lease. Lease receipts included 
in the measurement or the lease receivable is composed of fixed payments from the 
lessee. 

The city or Ozark monitors changes in circumstances that would require a remeasurement of its 
lease and will remeasure the lease receivable and deferred infiows or resources if certain changes 
occur that arc expected to significantly affect the amount of the lease receivable. 

Use of Estimates 
The preparation ol'basic financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting 
principles requires m,magement to 111ake estimates and assu111ptions that affect the amounts reported 
in the basic !inancial statements and accompanying notes . J\ctual results could differ from those 
estimates. 

Revenue Recognition - Property Taxes 

Property ta:-:.es attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January I . Taxes are levied on 
October I and arc due and payable al that time. All unpaid taxes levied October I become 
delinquent January I. of the following year. Valuation for 2024 was $ 348,240,646 with the levy 
set at$ .2708 total broken down $ .2166 for General Fund and $ .0542 Parks and Recreation. 

Revenue Recognition - Sales Tax authorizations 

Sales tax authorizations consist of a one-cent general sales recorded in the General Fund 
($ 4,693,748), 3/8 cent Transportation sales tax($ 1,759,242) (expires September 30, 2027), 3% 
marijuana use tax ($186,732), ¼ cent Capital Improvement sales tax ($ 1, 190,08 l) and ½ cent 
Park/Storm Water sales tax ($3,076,551). 

Interest Earned on SRF Bond Reserves 

On the debt issues funded under the State Revolving funds the City earns ii1terest on reserve accounts 
established by the Federal Government and State or Missouri which is applied lo reduce the required interest 
payments ror the City. 
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CITY OF OZARK, MISSOURI 
NOTES TO 8/\SIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31. 2024 

STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY 

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting 

The City is required by Missouri State Law RSMo 105.485 lo prepare a budget each year based on 
estimates o r revenues and expected expenditures which include at a minimum a budget message, budget 
summary. schedule with prior year comparison or estimated revenue and expenditures, schedule of bonded 
debt obligations and budget approval letter. The accompanying statement of revenues, expenditures and 
changes in rund balance-budget and actual includes the budgeted expenditures for the year, along with 
management' s est im ate of revenues for the year for both the original budget and the final budget which is 
reflective or any amendments throughout the fiscal year. The legal level of budgetary control is at the total 
fund level . 

Budgetary basis of accounting 

Annual budgets arc adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles 
(modified accrual basis) for all governmental funds . 

Excess of expenditures over appropriations 

For the year ended December 3 I, 2024, expenditures did not exceed appropriations in any of the 
Governmental 1.- ilnds. 

Bond Reserve Compliance 

The City was in compliance with required bonded debt reserves for the year. 

Legal Debt Margin 

The City's assessed value supports a general obligation bond limit of$ 34,824,065. The City did 
not have any general obligation bonds outstanding as of December 31 , 2024. 

35 



CITY OF OZARK, MISSOURI 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31. 2024 

DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS 

NOTE B - DEPOSITS AND INVI~STMENTS 

Deposi!.~ - Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the City's 
deposits may not be returned, or the City will not be able to recover collateral securities in the 
possession or an outside party. The City's bank deposits arc required by state law to be secured by 
the deposit or certain securities specilied at RSMo 30.270 with the City or trustee institution . The 
value or the securities must amount to the total of the City's cash not insured by the federal Deposit 
Insurance Corporation. 

As or December 31 , 2024, the City's bank balances were entirely secured or collateralized with 
securities held by the City or by its agent in the City's name. 

fVlissouri State Statues authorize the City to deposit funds in obligations of the U.S. Treasury, 
federal agencies and instn11nentalities, certificates of deposit, and repurchase agreements. Custodial 
credit risk is the risk that, in event of a bank failure , the government's deposits may not be returned 
to it. The City's deposits policy for custodial credit risk is set by statute. Statutes require that 
collateral pledged must have a fair value equal to 100% of the funds on deposit. less insured 
amounts . Col laternl securities, which arc of the same type as authorized for investment by the City, 
arc limited to the l'ollowing as prescribed by state statutes: 

'•'Bonds or the Slate or tvlissouri , or the United States, or of any wholly owned corporation of the 
United States. 

*Other short-term obligations of the United States. 

Investment Policies 
Credit Risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterpaity to an investment will not fulfill its 
obligations. The City docs not have a written investment policy covering credit risk. 

Interest Rate Risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of 
an investment. lnvestmcnis held for longer periods arc subject to increased risk of adverse 
interest rate changes. The City's policy is to limit the length of investments to meet cash flov,1 

requirements for ongoing operations, thereby avoiding the need to sell securities before maturity. 

Concentration of Credit Risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of the City's 
investment in a single issuer. The City policy is to invest in only those instruments approved by 
the State of Missouri which have minimal risk. 

Custodial Credit Risk is the risk that in the event of a broker/agent failure , securities that are 
uninsured and not registered in the name of the City and are held by either the countcrparly to the 
transaction or the countcrparty's trust dcpaitment or agent but not in the government's name will 
not be returned to the City. The City does have a written investment policy on custodial credit 
risk in which all investments are either insured or registered in the City's name and held by the 
City's agent. 
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CITY OF OZARK, MISSOURI 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31. 2024 

NOTE C - RESTRlCTl~D ASSETS 

For December 3 I, 2024, restricted cash accounts were as l'ollows: 

ENTERPRISE FUND Restricted Required Per 

Cash Bond Agreements 

Waterworks and Sewerage Fund 

Debt Reserves 

Construct ion 

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 

Park Fund 

Debt Reserves 

General Fund 

Grants 

Opera I ion reserves 

37 

$ 1,315,40 I 

I , 194,804 

$ 2,510,205 

Restricted 

Cash 

$ 2,271 ,826 

393,290 

1,828,092 

$ 4,493 ,208 

1,099,825 

1,099,825 



CITY OF OZARK, MISSOURI 
NOTLS TO BJ\SIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMB ER 31. 2024 

NOTE D - CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION 

Capital asset activity ror the year ended December 31 , 2024, ,vas as follows: 

Governmental Activities: 
Beginn ing 
Balance Increases 

Capital assets, not being depreciated: 
Land $ 13 ,923 ,908 $ 123 ,592 
Construction in progress 506,688 1,470,339 

Total capital assets not being depreciated 14,430,596 1,593 ,931 
Capital assets, being depreciated : 

Land improvements 41 ,948 ,847 3,406,319 
Buildings 18,590,602 1,027,914 
Machinery and Vehicles 6, 125, 18 I 1,354,002 

Total capital assets being depreciated 66,664,630 5,788,235 
Less: Accumulated depreciation for: 

Land improvements 11,360,409 1,476,005 
Buildings 5,376,394 389,350 
Machinery and Vehicles 2,896,956 628, 16 I 

Total accumulated depreciation 19,633 ,759 2,493 ,516 

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 47,030,871 3,294,719 

Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 61,461,467 $ 4,888,650 

Depreciation expense was charged to functions of the government as follows: 

Governmental activities: 

General government $ 112, 100 
Police 299,886 
Court 1,080 
Streets 1,475 ,253 
Parks 551,883 
Storm water 53 ,314 

$ 2,493,516 
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Ending 
Decreases Balance 

$ $ 14 ,047,500 
506,688 1,470,339 
506,688 15,517,839 

45,355,166 
763,240 18,855,276 
478,316 7,000,867 

1,241,556 71,211,309 

12,836,414 
144,990 5,620,754 
359,178 3,165,939 

504,168 21 ,623,107 

737,388 49,588,202 

$1,244,076 $ 65 , I 06,041 



CITY OF OZARK, MISSOURI 
NOTl~S TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31. 2024 

NOTED - CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION (Continued) 

Business Type Activities: 

Beginning 

Balance Increases 

Capital assets, not being depreciated: 

Land $ 1,612,755 $ 
Construction in progress 391 ,675 4,324,643 

Total capital assets not being depreciated $ 2,004,430 $4,324,643 

Capital assets, being depreciated: 

Buildings $ 233 ,398 $ 197,013 
Water system 34,972,062 I, 170,766 
Waste waler syslcm 56, 155 ,934 1,822,494 

Total capital asscls being depreciated 91,36 I ,394 3,190,273 
Less accumulated depreciation for: 

Buildings 71 ,007 6,738 
Water syslem 11 ,410,653 951 ,545 
Waste water system 25 ,477,571 1,735,661 

Total accumulated depreciation 36,959,231 2,693,944 

Total capital assets being depreciated, net $ 54,402,163 

Business-type activities capital assets, net $ 56,406,593 

Depreciation expense was charged to functions of the government as follows: 

Business-type activities : 

Water 

Wastewaler 
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$ 958,283 
1,735,661 

$ 2,693 ,944 

Ending 

Decreases Balance 

$ $ 1,612,755 

45 ,086 4,671 ,232 
$ 45,086 $ 6,283,987 

$ $ 430,411 

501,838 35,640,990 
57,978,428 

501,838 94,049,829 

77,745 

357,045 12,005 , 153 

27,213 ,232 

357,045 39,296,130 

$ 54,753,699 

$61,037,686 



CITY OF OZARK, MISSOURI 
NOTES TO BASIC FINJ\NCIJ\L STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31. 2024 

NOTE E - LONG-TERM DEBT 

Business-type activities 

The lollowing is a sulllmary of debt transactions of the City for the year ended December 31, 
2024, as it rel,1tes lo the business type activities: 

Amount due 
Beginning. 
Balance 

Revenue Bonds $ 6,545,000 

Cert. of Part. I 0,410,000 

NID Bonds 249,037 

Totals $ 17,204,037 

Compensated Absences $ 124,206 

Bond premium $ 95,534 

As reported on IIK financial statement: 

Alllount due within one >'car 
Debt 

Compensated absences 

Alllount due in lllore than one year: 
Revenue bonds 
NID Bonds 
Certificate or participation 
Compensated absences 
Bond prclllium 
Net pension liability 

Customer deposits 

Additions 

$ $ 

$ $ 

$ 130,406 $ 

$ $ 

Ending Within one 
Reductions Balance Year 

1,460,000 $ 5,085,000 $ 1,465,000 

545,000 9,865,000 545,000 

75,646 173,391 76,412 

2,080,646 $ 15,123,391 $ 2,086,412 

144,612 $ 110,000 $ 11,000 

4,072 $ 91 ,462 

$ 2,086.412 

l l ,000 

2,097,412 

3,620,000 

96,979 

9,320,000 

99,000 

91,462 

641,404 

716,4 12 

14,585,257 
$ 16,682,669 

The bond ordinances require that the City establish rates and charges for its water and sewer services, such 
that the revenues derived from lhc water and sewer system arc sufficient to provide for the payment of 
principal and interest on the revenue bonds and for the operation and maintenance of the water and sewer 
system. N 11) bonds arc debt payments arc provided by a special assessment property tax and leases 
payment comes rrom operation and maintenance runds. 
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CITY OF OZARK, MISSOURI 
NOTI:S TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 3 I. 2024 

NOTE E- LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 

Stale Revolving l-'L111d Program Bonds: The City has $ 5,085 ,000 or State Revolving Fund 
Program Bonds. In conjunction with this issuance, the City entered into an agreement with the 
rvlissouri Department ol'Nalural Resources whereby the slate of Missouri will advance monies to 
establish a reserve !"und in an amount up to 70% of the outstanding bonds. This reserve fund will 
serve as collateral on the State Revolving Fund Program Bonds in the event of default and interest 
earnings 011 the reserve rund will be used to reduce the City's interest payment on the outstanding 
bonds . 1\s or December 3 I, 2024, the reserve fund has approximately$ 3,948,273. 

The Proprietary Funds long-term debt as or December 3 I, 2024, follows : 

Revenue Bonds 

$ 7.980,000, 2006/\ Series, Waterworks and Sewerage System Revenue 

Bonds due in annual installments of principal ranging from$ 305 ,000 

Lo $ 480,000 and with interest rates ranging from 4.0% to 5.25% 

payments arc made monthly to trustee with the debt maturing 

.July I. 2026 . Slate Revolving Fund Program . 

$ 15,125,000 , 2007 ;\ Series, \Vaterworks and Sewerage System Revenue 

Bonds due in annual installments or principal ranging from$ 495,000 

to$ 2.1 ·1 s,000 and with interest rates ranging from 4.0% to 4.375% 

payments arc made monthly to trustee with the debt maturing 

January l, 202.8. State Revolving Fund Program. 

$435,000, 2012 Series, Combined Waterworks and Sewerage System 

Refunding Revenue Bonds clue in annual installments of principal 

ranging from$ 25,000 to$ 40,000 with interest paid semiannual at rates 

ranging from 2 .3% to 4.0%. Debt matures December I, 2025 . 
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$ 945,000 

4,115,000 

25,000 

$ 5,085,000 



CITY OF OZARK, MISSOURI 
NOTl ~S TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31. 2024 

NOTE E - LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 

The annual n.:quin.:1ncnls to a111orlize revenue bonded debt as of December 31 , 2024, follows: 

Year Ending 

December 3 I, Principal Interest Total 

2025 $ 1,465,000 $ 200, 144 $ 
2026 1.495,000 130,062 

2027 1,065 ,000 71,859 

2028 1,060,000 24,281 

$ 5,085,000 $ 426,346 $ 

$ (i. 700.000. 2016 Series, 1-'or Water System Improvements, 

Ccrtilicales of Participation, paying principal annually ranging from 
$ 85 ,000 to$ 890,000 with stated interest rates of2.00% to 3.25%. 

Principal and interest clue 5/1 and interest only 11/1 with debt 
maturing. 5/1/2038 . 

$ 4,4150,000. 2022 Series, Refunding COP Issue, issued to refund 

the 2013 COP issue Pay111ent range from $475,000 to $ 275,000. 

paid annually with interest paid semi-annually at 3.00% rate. 

Principal and interest clue 5/1 and interest only 11/1 with debt 

maturing 5/1/2033. 

Tola I Cerli licates or Participations 
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1,665 , 144 

1,625,062 

I, 136,859 

1,084,281 

5,511,346 

$ 6,420,000 

3,445,000 

$ 9,865,000 



CITY OF OZARK, MISSOURI 
NOTr:s TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31. 2024 

NOTE E- LONG-TERM DKBT (Continued) 

Y car l:nding Water Department 

Decem bcr 3 I , Principal Interest 

2025 $ 545 ,000 $ 298,531 

2026 540,000 282,256 

202'7 555 ,000 265 ,831 

2028 575 ,000 248,984 

2029 595 ,000 231,959 

2030-203 °1 3,665,000 849,792 

2035-2038 3,390,000 224,902 

$ 9,865 ,000 $ 2,402,255 

Neighborhood l111prnve111ent District Bonds 

$ I, 165 ,000 2006 Series Kirkwood Improvement District. 

Principal paid annually with$ 58 ,250 due each year and 

semiannual interest payments at 4.95% with debt maturing 
September I, 2026. 

$ 270.000 2006 Series Laurel Hills Improvement District. 

Principal paid annually ranging from$ I 0,897 to$ 19,777 and 

semiannual interest payments at 4.35% with debt maturing 

March I, 2027 . 

Special improvement bonds were issued to pay for sewer 

improvements and arc paid by a special property tax assessment. 
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$ 116,500 

56,891 

$ 173,391 



CITY OF OZARK, MISSOURI 
NOTES TO 8/\SIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 3 I. 2024 

NOTE E- LONG-TIW.M DEBT (Continued) 

The annual requirements to amortize special assessment debt as of December 3 I, 2024, is as 
follows: 

Year Lnding 

December 31 , Principal Interest Total 

2025 $ 76,412 $ 8,241 $ 84,653 

2026 77,202 4,568 81,770 

2027 19,777 860 20,637 

$ 173 ,391 $ 13 ,669 $ 187,060 
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crrv OF OZARK, MISSOURI 
NCHl ·:S TO 13/\SIC FIN/\NCI/\L STATEMENTS 

pr~CEMBER 31. 2024 

NOTE E - LONG-Tlm.M DEBT (Continued) 

Governmental activities 

The following is :1 summary or debt transactions of the City for the year ended December 31, 
2024 : 

Beginning 
13alance Additions 

Special /\sscssrnenl 13onds $ 42,758 $ 

Certificates or P;1r1icipatio11 17,122,434 

$ 17, 165 , 192 $ 

Cornpcnsalccl absences $ 256,599 $ 258,114 

Bond discount $ 192,886 $ 

As reported on the linancial statement: 
Amount due within one year 

Debt 
Cnrnpensatecf absences 

Reductions 

$ 9,990 

412,596 

$ 422,586 

$ 253 ,718 

$ 14,838 

/\mount due in more than one year: 
Special /\ssessment Bonds 
Ccrti ficates of Participation 
Compensated absences 
Bond discount 
Net pension liability 

Total 

Ending 
Balance 

$ 32,768 

16,709,838 

$ 16,742,606 

$ 260,995 

$ 178,048 

$ 384,379 

26,100 

410,479 

22,323 

16,335,904 

234,895 

(178,048) 

1,351,048 

17,766,122 

$ 18, 176,60 I 

The Governmental long-term special obligation debt as or December 31 , 2024, follows: 

$ 155 ,000, December 31 , 2007, Bluff Drive Community Improvement 
District 13onds ror the purpose of signalization project. Payments arc 
annual or $1 1,920 ,,vith an interest rate of 4.50%. Debt matures 
matures July 17, 2027 . 
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$ 32,768 

Amount due 
Within one 

Year 

$ 10,445 

373,934 

$ 384,379 

$ 26,100 



CITY OF OZARK, MISSOURI 
NOTl '.S TO l3/\SIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DLCUvll3ER 31. 2024 

NOTE E-LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 

The annual requirement to amortize special obligation bonded debt as of December 31 , 2024, is 
as follows : 

Year Ending 

December 3 I, Principal Interest Totals 

2025 $ 10.445 $ 1,474 $ 11 ,919 

2026 I 0.915 1,004 11 ,919 

2027 11,408 513 11 ,921 

$. ., 32,768 $ 2,991 $ 35,759 

The Governmental long-term certification of participation debt as of December 31 , 2024, follows: 

$ 19.35 0.000, 2014 Series, Refunding Certificate of Participation 

pay ing p1·incipal annually ranging from$ 200,000 to$ 2,765,000 

with stalL'd interest rates ol'2.00% to 4.00%. Principal and interest 
due 9/1 and interest only 3/1 with debt maturing September I , 2044 . 

$ 24 4,600.luly 19. 2021, lease purchase of fitness equipment for the 

fitness center with semi-annual payments of 13 , 149.00 at 5.50 I% 

interest rnre and the final payment January 16, 2026 
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$ 16,625,000 

84,838 

$ 16,709,838 



CITY OF OZARK, MISSOURI 
NOTES TO 13/\SIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

J)_l~CEMBER 3 I. 2024 

NOTE E - LONG-TEWVI DEBT (Continued) 

The annua I n.:q u i 1\:111c111 Ill amorl i/.c the ccrti ficate of participation debt as of December 31, 2024, 
is as !allows: 

Year Ending 

December 3 I . Principal Interest Totals 

2025 $ 398,9] ,1 $ 737,80 I $ 1,136,735 

2026 438.416 717 ,920 1, 156,336 

2027 !I 69 .06,1 696,522 I, I 65 ,586 

2028 504.731 673,605 I , 178,336 

2029 540,4 I 6 648,910 I , 189,326 

2030-2034 3.103.277 3,022,090 6, 125,367 

2035-2039 4,180,000 2, 137,802 6,317,802 

2040-2044 ~1,3 I 0.000 977,450 5,287,450 

204 Ll 2,765,000 122,088 2,887,088 

$ 16.709.838 $ 9,734,188 $ 26,444,026 

NOTE F-RISK MANAGEMENT 

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of: damage to, and destruction of 
assets ; errors and urnissions: injuries to employees; and natural disasters . The City maintains 
commercial insurance coverage ror property damage and various Missouri Official's bonds. 
Management believes coverage is surficient to preclude any significant uninsured losses to the City. 

On December 3 I. 2024, the City maintained commercial insurance coverage for building and 
contents and employee then. In the past three years the City has had no losses that exceeded 
commercial insurance coverage. 

NOTE G - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN 

The City or Ozark participates in Lhe Missouri Local Government Employees Retirement System 
(LAGERS) . LJ\GUZS is an agent multiple-employer, statewide public employee retirement plan 
for units or local government which is legally separate and fiscally independent of the State of 
Missouri . The retirement system covers all full-time City employees. 
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CITY OF OZARK, MISSOURI 
NOTl·:S TO n ,\SIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

l)_Li,~!iM 13 ER 3 I. 2024 

NOTE G -DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (Continued) 

Plan descrip1_i_o.D 

The City or Ozark· s del'inecl benel1I pension plan provides certain retirement, disability and death 
benefits to plan members and benel1ciaries. The City of Ozark participates in the Missouri Local 
Government r~n1ployees Rctircrnenl System (!,AGERS). LAGERS is an agent multiple-employer, 
statewide public employee pension plan established in 1967 and administered in accordance with 
RSMo. 70.600-70 .755 . /\s such, it is L;\GERS responsibility to administer the law in accordance 
with the expressed intent 01· the General Assembly. The plan is qualified under the Internal 
Revenue Code Section ,10 I (a) and is tax exempt. The responsibility for the operations and 
administration or LACl ~RS is vested in the LAGERS Board of Trustees consisting of seven 
persons. 1,/\Gl-:I:ZS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and 
required suppl e111c11lary inlcirmatiun. This report may be obtained by accessing the LAGERS 
website at www.111olagers.org. 

Benefits provided 

LAGERS provides 1·e1ircment, death and disability benefits . Benefit provisions are adopted by the 
governing budy or the employer. within the options available in the state statutes governing 
LAGERS. ;\II hcnel11s vest a lier 5 years or credited service. Employees who retire on or after age 
60 (55 for police and lire) with 5 or more years of service arc entitled to an allowance for life based 
upon the be11cl1t program inl'ormation provided below. Employees may retire with an early 
retirement bcnclit \v·ith a minimum or 5 years of credited service and alter attaining age 55 (50 for 
police and l1n:) and receive a reduced allowance. 

Benefit i'vl uh iplie r: 
final Average Salary: 
Member C()ntributions: 

2024 Valuation 
1.50% 

3 years 
0.00% 

Benel1t terms provide !or annual post-retirement adjustments to each member's retirement 
allowance subsequent to the member's retirement date. The annual adjustment is based on the 
increase in the Consumer Price Index and is limited to 4% per year. 

Employees covered bv benefit terms 

On June 30, 2024. the following employees were covered by the benefits terms: 

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 
Active employees 

·1·otnl 
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57 
54 

119 
230 



CiTY OF OZARK, MISSOURI 
NOTL~S TO 13/\SIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

J)ECEMl3ER 31. 2024 

NOTE G-DEFINI<:D BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (Continued) 

Contributions 

The employer is required lo contribute amounts at least equal to the actuarially determined rate, as 
established by L1\ Gl~RS. The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to 
finance the cost or benelits earrn:d by employees during the year, with an additional amount to 
finance an unl"t1nlkd accrued liability. Full-time employees of the employer contribute 0% of their 
gross pay to the J)L'llsion plan. Lmployer ' s contribution rates arc 12.70% General and 12.6% Police 
of annual CO\'cred payroll. 

Net Pension Liahilitv 

The employer's 11c1 pension liability was 111easured as June 30, 2024, and the total pension liability 
used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as ofFebruary 
28, 2024. 

Actuarial assumptions 

The total pensiun liability in the 1:ebruary 28, 2024, actuarial valuation was deter111ined using the 
following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement: 

Inflation 

Salary incre ase 
Investment rnlc oi· return 

2 . 75% wage inflation; 2.25% price inflation 

2. 75<½, to 6. 75% including wage inflation 

7.00% net of investment expenses 

Mortality rates wen: based 011 the 1994 Group Annuity Mortality Table set back O years for both 
111ales and females . 

The actuarial assumptions used in the 1:ebruary 29, 2024, valuation were based on the results of an 
actuarial experience study for the period March I, 20 I 0, through February 28, 2015. 

The long-term expected rate or return 011 pension plan invest111ents was determined using a model 
method in which 1he best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, 
net of investment expense and inllation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are 
combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighing the expected future real 
rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target 
allocation and best estimates or arithmetic real rates or return for each major asset class are 
summarized in thL' ltlllowing table: 
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DECEMBER 3 I. 2024 

NOTE G - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (Continued) 

Asset ( :iass 

Equity 
Fixed Income 
Real Assets 

Discount rate 

Target 
Allocation 

39.00% 
28.00% 
33.00% 

Long-Term Expected 
Real Rate of Return 

4.16% 
0.89% 
2.09% 

The discount rule used to measure the total pension liability is 7.00%. The projection or cash flows 
used to detenninc lhe discount rate assumes that employer and employee contributions will be made 
at the rates agreed upon lor employees and the actuarially determined rates for employers. Based 
on these assu111plirn1s, the pension plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to pay 
all projected ruturc benefit payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the long­
term expected rate or return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected 
benefit pay111 enl to determine the total pension liability. 

Changes in the 1'\d Pension Liabilitv 

Increase (Decrease) 
Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension 

Liability Net Position Liability 
(a) (b) (a)+(b) 

Balances at 7/1/2023 $ 22,371,667 $ (2I ,019,770) $ 1,351 ,897 
Changes for the year: 

Service Cost 731,459 731,459 
Interest 1,565,31 I 1,565,311 
Changes in assumptions 
Difference between expected and actual experienc 687,416 687,416 
Contribution - employer (1,095,385) ( 1,095,385) 
Net investment income (I, 136,710) (1,136,710) 
Benefit payments . i11c luding refunds (751,958) 751,958 
Administrative ('.Xpc11sc 27,558 27,558 
Other changes (139,094) (139,094) 

Net changes 2,232,228 (1,591,673) 640,555 
Balances at 6/30/2024 $ 24,603,895 $ (22,61 1,443) $ 1,992,452 
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ClTY OF OZARK, MISSOURI 
NO 11:s TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 3 I. 2024 

NOTE G -DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (Continued) 

Sensitivilv or the 11cl nension liability to changes in the discount rate 

The following presents the Net Pension Liability ol'the employer, calculated using the discount rate 
of 7.00% lix (Jenera I l)ivision and 7.00% for Police Division, as well as what the employer's Net 
Pension Liability would be using a discount rate that is I percentage point lower 6.00% for General 
Division and (,.00% for Police Division or one percentage point higher 8.00% for General Division 
and 8.00% 1·or Police Division than the current rate. 

1 '1/o D cc IT as c 

6.00'1/., 

$ 5,922.:\95 

Current Single Discount 
Rate Assumption 

7.00% 
$ 1,992.452 

1 '¼, Increase 
8.00% 

$ ( I .204,072) 

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Related to Pl·11sio11s 

For the year l..'mled .lune 30, 2024, the employer recognized pension expense of$ (31,774). The 
employer reported clelcrred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions from the 
following sources: 

Differences in experience 

Differences in assumptions 

Excess( de lie it) in investment returns 

Contributions subsequent to the measurement elate* 

Total 

Delc1-red 
Outflows 

Defo rrcd 
Inflows 

ofResources of Resources 
$ 1,546,372 $ (89,371) 

(83, I 89) 

607,991 

565,192 

$ 2,719,555 $ (172,560) 

*The amount reported as deferred outflows of resources resulting from contributions subsequent to 
the measurement date will be recognized as an increase in the Net Pension Asset for the year ending 
December 3 l , 2025 

Amounts rcpurted as deferred outflows and inOows of resources related to pensions will be 
recognized in pension expense as follows: 
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CITY OF OZARK, MISSOURI 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 3 I. 2024 

NOTE G - DEFlN ED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (Continued) 

Ye:1r ended: 
2025 $ 213,66 I 
202(i 844,699 
2027 564,529 
2028 290,233 
2029 60,716 

·1·1ierealter 7,965 
1·01al $ 1,981 ,803 

Payable to till' Pension Plan 

On DecctnbL· 1· 3 I . 202°1, the City of Ozark repo1ted a payable of$ 0.00 for the outstanding amount 
of contributi l)lts lo the pension plan required for the year ended December 3 I, 2024. 

NOTE H - GRANT~ 

Intergovcrnn1entnl awards received by the City arc subject to audit and adjustment by the grantor 
agencies. I 1· :-'Sant revenues are received for expenditures, which are subsequently disallowed, the 
City may be required to repay the revenues to the runding agencies. No disallowed costs have 
resulted rro,1 1 this audit and management believes that l"urther examination will not result in any 
disallowed custs . 

NOTE I -CONTINCl~NCIES 

LitigatLon -· \lcirious claims and lawsuits are pending against the City. In the opinion of the City's 
management. the potential loss on all claims and lawsuits will not be significant to the City's 
financial statements. 

NOTE .J - INTERFl I ND TRANSFERS 

Interfund transfers as lo I lows were used to supplement the operating expenditures: 

Translcrs: In Out 
General hind $ 120,000 $ 992,650 
Park 1:u nd 1,042,650 50,000 

Solid \Vaste 120,000 
$ 1,162,650 $ I, 162,650 
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CITY OF OZARK, lVIISSOURI 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 3 I. 2024 

NOTE K - INTIW. ViJ ND TH.ANSFERS FOR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS 

During the :, car. the Capital Improvement Fund transferred $ 1,050,000 to the General Fund 
which in turn used the money to purchase capital assets. 

In 
Gcner,il hind $ 1,050,000 $ 

Capital lrnprovcrnent Fund 1,050,000 ------

$ 1,050,000 $ 1,050,000 

NOTE L- FUTUIU: ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS 

The accounting principles governing the repo11ed amounts, presentation and related disclosures 
arc subject tu change from time to time based on new pronouncements and/or rules issued by 
various g\iv,:rning. bndies. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASS) is 
responsible 1;ir l'Slablishing generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) for state and local 
government:-, . 

The City acluplcd the J"ollowing statements during the year ended December 31, 2024: 

GASB Stalc111cnt No. I 00, Accounting Changes 011d Error Corrections-An Ame11d111e11t ofGASB, 
Statement No. 62., Issued June 2022, This Statement is to enhance accounting and financial 
reporting requirements for accounting changes and error corrections to provide more 
understandable, reliable, relevant, consistent, and comparable information for making decisions 
or assessing accountability. The effective date of this requirement is for fiscal years ending after 
June 15, 2023. Earlier application is encouraged. 

GASB Statement No. IO 1, Compensated Absences, Issued June 2022. This statement is to better 
meet the in Ii.mnation needs of financial statements users by updating the recognition and 
measurement guidance for compensated absences . The effective date of this requirement is for 
fiscal years rnd ing art er December 15, 2023. Earlier application is encouraged. 

GASl3 Statc,m:nt No. I 02, Certain Risk Disclosures. Issued December 2023 . This statement is to 
provide users or governmental financial statements with essential information about risks related 
to a government's vulnerabilities due to certain concentrations or constraints. The effective date 
of this requirement is for fiscal years ending after June 15, 2024. Earlier application is 
encouraged. 

The City did not have any changes to rep011 for the year ending December 31, 2024, upon 
adopting G1\ Sl3 I 02. 
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CITY OF OZARK, MISSOURI 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIJ\L STJ\TEMENTS 

DECEMBER 3 I. 2024 

NOTE L - FUTU HY ACCO lJNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

GASL3 Statement No. l 03, Financial Reporting Model !111prove111ents, Issued April 2024. The 
objective or this Statement is to improve key components of the financial reporting model to 
enhance its clTt:cliveness in providing information that is essential for decision making and 
assessing a ~uvcrnmcnt's accountability. This statement also addresses certain application issues. 
The clTcct ivc date or this requirement is for fiscal years ending after June 15, 2025. Earlier 
application i :; n1couraged. 

GASB Sta1c111cn1 No . I 04, Disclosure of Certain Capital Assets, Issued September 2024. The 
objective ol' this Statement is to provide users of government financial vvith essential information 
about certain types or capital assets. The effective date of this requirement is for fiscal years 
ending artcr .lune 15, 2025 . Earlier application is encouraged . 
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CITY OF OZARK, MISSOURI 
SC HE DU LE OF Rl:\il~NUl: S. EXPENDITURES. 1\ND 

CIIANGES IN FUND BJ\Li\NCES - BUDGET AND i\CTU1\L -

ivli\JOR GOVERNi'vlENTi\L 1:UN DS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2024 

REVENUES 

Taxes : 

Properly taxes 

Franchise taxes 

Sales laxes 

I ntergovernme111al: 

iVlissouri motor fuel taxes 

Charge for services: 

Police services 

Licenses & per111its 

1-'iues & lorlcitures 

I nlerest 

Gra11ts 

Rents 

Developers contributio11 

iVI isecl laneous 

Total Revenues 

EXPENDITURES 

Current : 

Ge11eral govern111ent 

Police 

Court 

Street 

Capital outlay 

Debt service: 

Pri11cipal 

Interest and recs 

Total Expenditures 

EXCESS (DEFICIT) OF REVENUES 

OVER l·:XPENDITURES 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USl:S) 

Transfers from other funds 

Transfers (to) other funds 

Sale of assets 

NET Cl l;\NGE IN H JN D Bi\LANCE 

FUND B1\L1\NCl:S - BEGINNING 

FUND BALANCES - 1:NDING 

General Fund 

Budgeted ;\mounts 

Original 

SO I, 100 

845,000 

6,610,261 

1,030 ,000 

112.350 

336.600 

55.000 

185 ,227 

1.918.741 

91.875 

20,460 

12.006,614 

3, I 06,374 

4,970,025 

127,613 

1,557,043 

5.582,041 

9.995 

1,930 

15,355,021 

(3 ,348 ,407) 

I, 150,000 

(847,065) 

5,000 

307,935 

$ (3 ,040,472) 
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Final 

so 1, 100 

845.000 

6.638 ,260 

1.030,000 

126,845 

336,600 

55,000 

185,227 

1,452, I 04 

91.875 

1,303 , 136 

50,549 

12,915,696 

3,241 ,805 

4,840,896 

80,091 

3,0 I 0,383 

5,661,402 

9.995 

1,930 

16,846,502 

(3 ,930 ,806) 

I, 150,000 

(982,528) 

337,508 

504,980 

$ (3,425 ,826) 

Actual 

864,504 

844,223 

6,639,722 

1.152.782 

90.439 

444,320 

136.528 

669,680 

2,562.441 

145, 133 

1.303, 136 

51 ,201 

14,904, I 09 

2,205 ,472 

4,266,673 

22.494 

1,233,037 

5,210.711 

9,990 

1,929 

12,950,306 

1,953,803 

I, 170,000 

(992,650) 

357,825 

535 , 175 

2,488,978 

9,619,011 

$ 12, 107,989 

Variance With 

Final Budget 

$ 63 ,404 

(777) 

1,462 

122,782 

(36,406) 

107,720 

81,528 

484,453 

1,1 10,337 

53 ,258 

652 

1,988,4 13 

1.036,333 

574,223 

57,597 

1,777,346 

450,691 

5 

3,896,196 

5,884,609 

20,000 

( 10,122) 

20,317 

30,195 

$ 5,914,804 



CITY OF OZARK, MISSOURI 
SCI ll~DULE OF REVl:NUES, l'.XPENDITURES, AND 

Cl 1/\NGES IN FUND 13;\L/\NCl:S - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -

MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL 1-'UNDS 
FOR THE YEAR l·:NDED DECEi'vll3ER 31. 2024 

REVENUES 

Taxes: 
Propcrty taxcs 

Sales taxes 
Charge for services: 

Park programs 
Interest 
C, rants 

Rcnts 
Impact lees 
Miscellaneous 

Total Rcvcnucs 

Current: 

:\cl111i11istration park department 
Capital ,iutlay 
Debt scr'.'icc: 

Principal 
lntcrcst and li:cs 

Total I '.xpcnditurcs 

1::xcESS (Dl:FICIT) OF REVl~NUES OYl:'.R 

EXPENDITURl:S 131·:FORE OTI 11:R 

FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

OTI 11.·:R FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

Transfers 

NET Cl 1/\NGE IN FUND 131\L/\NCE 

FUND 13/\LANCl:S - BEGINNING 

FUND 131\L;\NCl:S - 1:NDING 

Park/Storrnwater Funds 

___ B_uc....,16,__•c_tccl t\ 111ou n ts 
Original 

$ 192.100 

2.624 ,781 

2,108.200 

632.000 

68.500 

25 ,000 

200 

5,650 ,781 

4, 113.932 

2,077.000 

,112,596 

737, 104 

7.340.632 

(1,689,851) 

565,839 

$ (1,124,012) 
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Final 

$ 193.078 

2,661 ,281 

2.255 ,824 

500,760 

68,500 

25 ,000 

5,200 

5,709,643 

4.666 ,567 

I .'191 ,483 

412.596 

737, I 04 

7,307,750 

( 1,598, I 07) 

701,302 

$ (896,805) 

Actual 

$ 252,279 

3,076.551 

2.446,433 

184 ,710 

I 67.867 

75.739 

6,688 

6,210,267 

4.313,491 

1,664.767 

412.596 

737, 104 

7.127,958 

(917,691) 

992,650 

74,959 

6,844,456 

$ 6,919,415 

Variance With 
Final l3udget 

$ 252,279 

415,270 

190,609 

184.710 

(332,893) 

7,239 

(25 ,000) 

1,488 

693,702 

353,076 

(173,284) 

179,792 

873,494 

291,348 

$ I, 164,842 



CITY OF OZARK, MISSOURI 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

NOTES TO BUDGETARY COMPARISON INFORMATION 
DECEMBER 3 I. 2024 

Explanation of Budgetary Process 

The City Council follows the procedures outlined below 111 establishing the budgetary data 
reflected in the basic financial statements: 

a. City depaiiment directors prepare depaiimental operating budgets, and the Director of 
Finance makes revenue projections on or before September 1st

. 

b. Depaiimental meetings are conducted during the month of October with the City 
Manager and the Director of Finance to allow the departments to suppo1i their budgets. 

c. Preliminary budget summaries of revenues and expenditures/expenses are prepared for 
review by the City Manager. 

d. Final budget decisions are made by the City Manager by mid-November. 
e. A proposed budget is submitted to the City Council by the end of November. 
f. Prior to January 151, the budget is legally enacted. Projected expenditures cannot exceed 

estimated revenues plus fund balances at the beginning of the year. 
g. Budgetary control is exercised by the City Council at the depa1iment and fund levels. 

The City council is the legal level of budgetary control. All unexpended appropriations 
lapse at year-end. 

Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. 

The budgeted amounts included in the basic financial statements are as originally adopted or 
amended by the City Council, pursuant to State Statutes. The City Council adopts annual budgets 
for the General Fund, Park/Storm Water Fund, and Capital Improvement Fund. 

For the year ended December 31, 2024, actual expenditures were within budget. 
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Actuarially 
Determinccl 

Fiscal Y car Contribution 
2015 $ ,J 16.8,16 

2016 394 .221 
2017 ,124.776 
2018 542.'195 
2019 5,13 _9,[0 

2020 598.717 
2021 (,14.417 

2022 703 .3% 
2023 1.037.125 
202,1 I. I 35.7112 

CITY OF OZARK, MISSOURI 
l~EQUIR[ D SlJPPLl '. iVll ·:NTJ\RY INFORivlATION-UNJ\ UDITED 

SCHEDULE OF PENSION l'Lt\N CO NTRIBUTIONS 
LAST TEN FISCAL Yl~A RS 

FOR Tl II -: YEARS ENDED DECUvlBER 31 

Contribution in Contribution Covered Contribution as 
Relation Delicicncy Payroll Percentage 

s 1116.8,16 $ $ 4.070.250 10.24% 
39,J.221 ,J.]63.02,1 9.47% 
424 ,776 4.<-122.354 9.61% 
542.495 ,J.407.398 12.31% 
543.9,J0 ,J.519.135 12.04% 
598.717 ,J.862,604 12.31% 
6J ,JA 17 :J. 980.3 85 12.3,J¾ 

699.:145 3.951 5.522.992 12.Ci6% 
1.037.125 6.,129.'172 16.13% 
1.12(,.672 9.070 6.(,80. 11 <1 16.87% 

NOTES TO SCIIIJ)lJJ,E OF CONTRIBUTIONS 

Valuation Date: 

Notes : 

February 29. 2024 

The roll-forward or total pension liability from February 28. 202,1 lo 
.lune 30. 2021I rcllccts expected service cost and imcrest reduced 
by actual benclit payments. 

Methods and Assumptions Used lo Determine Contribution Rates : 

Actuarial Cost ivlethod 
Amortization i'vlcthod 

Remaining Amortization Period 
Asset Valuation Method 
lnllation 
Salary Increases 
I nvestmcnt Rate or Return 
Retirement 1\ge 

Mortality 

Othi;:r information : 

Entry Age Normal and Modi lied Terminal Funding 
A level percentage or payrol I amortization method is used to 
amortize the lJA1\i, over a closed period or years. 1rthe UAAL 
(excluding the UA1\L associated with bcnclil clrnnges) is negative. 
then this amount is amortized ovcr the grealcr or(i) the remaining 
initial amortization period or ( ii) 15 years. 
Multiplc bases from 7 to 19 years 
5-Y car smnothcd market: 20% corridor 
2. 75% wage i111lation: 2.25% pricc inllation 
2.75'¾, to 6.75% including wage inllation 
7 .00%. net or investmcnt expenses 
Experiencc-based table or rates that arc spccilic to the type or 
eligibility condition. 
The healthy retiree mortality tables. for post-retirement mortality, 
used in evaluating allowances to be paid were 115% or the PubG-
20 IO Retiree rvlortalily Table for males and females. The disabled 
retiree mortality tables. fix post-retirement mortality. used in 
evaluating allowanccs to be paid were 115% or the PubNS-20 I 0 
Disabled Retiree Mortality Table for males and fcmali;:s. The pre­
retirement mortality tables used were 75% of the PubG-20 I 0 
L::mploycc Mortality Table for males and lcmales or General groups 
and 75% oi" the PubS-20 IO Employee Mortality Table for males and 
lcmales or Polic..:. Fin:: and Public Salety groups. 

i'vlortality rates for a particular cali;:ndar yi;:ar are tkti;:rmined by 
applying th..: iVIP-2020 mortality improvement scale to the above 
described tables. 
None 



CITY OF OZARK, IVUSSOURI 
SC I-ICDULE OF REVENUES, EX PEN DITURES, AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -
NONMA.IOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECErvm ER 31. 2024 

REVEN UES 
Taxes: 

Sales taxes 
Total Revenues 

OTHER FINANCING SOU RCES (USES) 
Transfers (to) other runcls 

NET Cl !ANGE IN FUND 13ALANCE 

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING 

FUND 13ALANCES - EN DING 

Capital Improvement fund 
Budgeted Amounts 

Original Final Actual 

$ I , 170.777 $ I , 170,777 $ 1,190,08 1 
I, 170,777 I, 170,777 1,190,08 1 

(1 ,050,000) (1,050,000) ( 1,050,000) 

$ 120,777 $ 120,777 140,081 

779,345 

$ 919,426 
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Variance With 
Final Budget 

$ 19,304 
19,304 

$ 19,304 



Decker & Pace 
CERT I FIED PUBL I C ACCOUNTANTS 

3259A EAST SUNSHINE 

SPRINGFIELD MISSOURI 65804 

417 887 1888 

FAX 417 887 0028 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON 
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED 

IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the City Council 
City of Ozark, Missouri 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of 
the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and 
the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Ozark, Missouri, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2024, and 
the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise City of Ozark, Missouri's basic financial statements, 
and have issued our report thereon dated July 21, 2025. 

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered City of Ozark, Missouri's internal control 
over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances 
for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of City of Ozark, Missouri's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of 
City of Ozark, Missouri's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in 
the normal course of perfonning their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements, on a timely basis. 
A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, 
on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less 
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not 
designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given 
these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material 
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. 

Report on Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether City of Ozark, Missouri's financial statements are free from material 
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, 
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not 
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to 
be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of This Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of 
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is 
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal 
control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

r'\ .. .,, ,)I\,,, 'Y P~ l--J.--C-­
~~ce,1,Ic 

Springfield, Missouri 
July 21, 2025 
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Decker & Pace 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

3259A EAST SUNSHINE 

SPRINGFIELD MISSOURI 65804 

4178871 888 

FAX 41 7 887 0028 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM 
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 

To the City Council 
City of Ozark, Missouri 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited City of Ozark, Missouri's compliance with the types of compliance requirements identified as 
subject to audit in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of City 
of Ozark, Missouri's major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2024. City of Ozark, Missouri's 
major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of 
findings and questioned costs. 

In our opinion, City of Ozark, Missouri, complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs 
for the year ended December 31, 2024. 

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of 
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements 
for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance)) Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform Guidance 
are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report. 

We are required to be independent of City of Ozark, Missouri and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in 
accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal 
program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of City of Ozark, Missouri's compliance with the 
compliance requirements referred to above. 

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws, 
statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to City of Ozark, Missouri's 
federal programs. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the compliance 
requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion on City of Ozark, 
Missouri's compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute 
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing 
standards, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always detect material noncompliance 
when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered 
material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment 
made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about City of Ozark, Missouri's compliance with the 
requirements of each major federal program as a whole. 
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In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, 
and the Unifonn Guidance, we: 

., Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

• Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design and 
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, 
evidence regarding City of Ozark, Missouri ' s compliance with the compliance requirements referred to 
above and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 

e Obtain an understanding of City of Ozark, Missouri ' s internal control over compliance relevant to the 
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on 
internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of City of Ozark, Missouri ' s internal control over compliance. 
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal control over 
compliance that we identified during the audit. 

Report on Internal Control over Compliance 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance 
does not allow management or employees, in the nonnal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, 
or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely 
basis. A material wealmess in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, 
in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a 
type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely 
basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that 
is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit 
attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the Auditor' s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in 
internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control 
over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control 
over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were not identified. 

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over 
compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

The purpose of this repo1t on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of 
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform 
Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

~~4--D~ /.-Le-
Decker & Pace, LLC 

Springfield, Missouri 
July 21, 2025 
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CITY OF OZARK, MISSOURI 
SCH[;DULE Or- EXPENDITURES OF r-EDERAL AWARDS 

r-GR THE YF.AR ENDED DECEMBER 31 . 10~4 

A1n1rd 111/ormatiou 

1/i:;hll'n_l' Safe~r Cluster-Cluster 
Dcp:1rtmcnt ofTransport:ition 

State and Community Highway Safety 
State and Community Highway Safe ty 

Total State and Community Highway Safety 
Total Depnrum:111 of'/i·ampor1a1io11 

Total lli;.:l11 my Safc{1' C/m1cr-Cl,u1cr 
Otlrcr Pra;.:rttms (Treated imlfridua /{1·/or major program 
dctcrmhmtio11) 

United States Department of Justice 
l3ullclproof Vest Partnership Program 

I3ullctproofVcst Partnership Program 
Tot.11 Bulletproof Vest Partnership Program 
Equitable Sharing Program 

Equitable Sharing Program _ 
Total Equitable Sharing Program 

Total U11i1c:cl Stnll.!s Dc:par111u:11 / of J usl ic.: 

Department ofTransponation 
Highway Planning and Constrnction 

Highway Planning; and Constrnction 
Total Highway Planning and Construction 
Alcohol Open Container Requirements 

Alcohol Open Container Requirements 
Total Alcohol Open Container Requirements 

Total D,:par/111,:111 ofTra11sportatio11 

Department of the Treasury 
CORON,\VIRUS STATE AND LOCAL l'ISCAL RECOVERY 
FUNDS 

CORONAVIRUS STATE AND LOCAL r-ISCAL 
RECOVERY FUNDS 

Total CORONA VIRUS ST,\ TE AND LOCAL FISCAL 
RECOVERY r-UNDS 

Total /J,:par/111,: 111 of the: Treasury 

Default Agency 
High Intensity Drug Traffiekmg Arc.is Prog,am 

lligh Intensity Drug Trafficking; Areas Program 
Total High Intensity Drug Trafficking; Arr.as Program 

Total Dt:fimll Ag,:n(J' 
Department of I lomeland Securi ty 

Disaster Grants - Public Assistance (Presidentially Declared 
Disasters) 

Disas ter Grants - Public Assistance (Presidentially Declared 
Disasters) 

Total Disaster Grants - Public Assistance (Presidentially 
Declared Disasters) 

Tola/ D epartmelll of H ume/am/ Security 

Total Other Programs (Treated indfritl,w/(rfor major program 
t!ctcrmi1mtin11) 
Total £xpcmliturcs of Fctlcrnl Au·anls 

The accompanying notes :ire an integral p::i. rt of this schedule 

Al.lotl,cr # 

20.600 

16.607 

16.9~2 

::!0.'.:!05 

10.607 

21.027 

95.00 1 

97.036 

Pasl·-Tltroug!, Entity 

Name 

i\•1issouri Dept of 're\' 

MOH\\)' Patrol 

i\·1O Highway Patrol 

MoDOT 

J\loDOT 

i\·lo Div of Adm in 

MoHWY Patrol 

Mo Dept of Emergency 
Mgmt 

M 

Pas.\·-Througl, Entity # 

23-PT-02-093 

STBG-99001 

GI9-20M 

SYBXUl-:3YCSUI 

Passe,l-througlt to Fetlcral EYpemliturcs (S) 
S11br cci11ie11ts (SJ 

1.91 I 
0 1.91 1 

i .911 
1.91 I 

1.9S3 

0 1.983 

3,301 

0 3,301 
5.2S4 

756.727 

0 756.727 

2,693 

0 2.693 
759.420 

4,S49.53S 

0 4.S49.53S 
4.S49.53S 

64.S0 I 

0 64.80 1 
64.801 

47,403 

0 47.403 
47.403 

5,726,446 

so S 5.72S.357 



CITY OF OZARK, MISSOURI 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AW ARDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2024 

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AW ARDS 

NOTE A - BASIS OF PRESENA TION 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes 
the federal activity of the City of Ozark, Missouri, under programs of the federal 
government for the year ended December 31, 2024. The information in this Schedule is 
presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents 
only a selected portion of the operations of the City of Ozark, Missouri, it is not intended 
to and does not present the financial position, changes in net position, or cash flows of the 
City of Ozark, Missouri. 

NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America (accrual basis). Such expenditures are 
recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance and/or 0MB 
Circular A-87, Cost Principles for State, Local, and Indian Tribal Governments wherein 
certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. 

NOTE C-INDIRECT COST RATE 

The City of Ozark, Missouri has elected not to use the 10% de minim is indirect cost rate 
allowed under the Uniform Guidance. 
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CITY OF OZARK, MISSOURI 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2024 

A. SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS 

Financial Statements 
Type of auditor's report issued: Unmodified 

Internal control over financial reporting: 
• Material weakness( es) identified? 
• Significant deficiency(ies) identified? 
0 Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? 

Federal Awards 
Internal control over major programs: 
• Material weakness(es) identified? 
• Significant deficiency(ies) identified? 

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major 
programs? Unmodified 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in 
accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)? 

The programs tested as major program were: 
Account Listing Number: 21.027 American Recovery Plan Act 
Account Listing Number: 20.205 Highway Planning & Construction 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and 
type B programs: $750,000 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? ✓ 

B. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FINDINGS-

None 

C. FEDERAL AW ARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS-

None 
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yes 

yes 

✓ 110 

✓ none reported ---
✓ no 

✓ no 
✓ none reported ---

✓ no 
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Number 

CITY OF OZARK, MISSOURI 
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3 L 2024 

Finding 

NI A The City of Ozark, Missouri had no federal 
grants in the prior year that had any findings to correct or report. 
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SECTION III - STATISTICAL SECTION

City of Ozark, Missouri 

Annual Comprehensive Financial Report For 
the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2024

(Unaudited)



City of Ozark, Missouri 
Statistical Section Overview 

This part of the City’s annual comprehensive financial report presents detailed information as a 
context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures and 
required supplementary information says about the City’s overall financial health.  

Contents  Pages 

Financial Trends 

These Schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how 
the City’s financial performance and well-being have changed over time.  68-73

Revenue Capacity 

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the City’s most 
significant local revenue sources.  74-80

Debt Capacity 

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of  
the City’s current levels of outstanding debt and the City’s ability to issue additional 
debt in the future.  81-85

Demographic and Economic Information 

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader  
understand the environment within which the City’s financial activities take place. 86-88

Operating Information  

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand 
how the information in the City’s financial report relates to the services the City  
provides and the activities it performs.  89-91

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the audited annual 
financial reports for the relevant year.   



2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

Net investment in capital assets 47,190,435.00$      44,489,161.00$      37,826,430.00$      33,236,254.00$   25,229,456.00$   21,882,169.00$   19,792,488.00$   16,388,853$     13,521,562$     11,821,889$     
Restricted 2,224,542.00          700,774.00           989,455.00           69,490.00             819,556.00           2,182,340          2,151,834          1,545,000          
Unrestricted 21,220,404.00        17,207,582.00        15,920,066.00        14,903,374.00     10,847,263.00     9,945,922.00       6,492,086.00       5,720,013          6,341,012          6,912,707          

68,410,839.00$      61,696,743.00$      55,971,038.00$      48,840,402.00$   37,066,174.00$   31,897,581.00$   27,104,130.00$   24,291,206$     22,014,408$     20,279,596$     

Net investment in capital assets 45,822,833.00$      39,107,019.00$      33,552,083.00$      30,162,519.00$   25,518,825.00$   20,587,591.00$   19,715,659.00$   15,068,037$     10,695,017$     14,521,276$     
Restricted 2,294,626.00          2,882,028.00          2,878,685.00          4,578,357.00       5,795,021.00       5,681,280.00       5,613,182.00       7,987,036          9,782,390          6,682,768          
Unrestricted 5,458,202.00          8,894,836.00          11,746,756.00        10,353,766.00     10,156,711.00     12,492,743.00     10,993,970.00     11,590,107       12,523,614       9,641,344          

53,575,661.00$      50,883,883.00$      48,177,524.00$      45,094,642.00$   41,470,557.00$   38,761,614.00$   36,322,811.00$   34,645,180$     33,001,021$     30,845,388$     

Net investment in capital assets 93,013,268.00$      83,596,180.00$      71,378,513.00$      63,398,773.00$   50,748,281.00$   42,469,760.00$   39,508,147.00$   31,456,890$     24,216,579$     26,343,165$     
Restricted 2,294,626.00          2,882,028.00          5,103,227.00          5,279,131.00       6,784,476.00       5,750,770.00       6,432,738.00       10,169,376       11,934,224       8,227,768          
Unrestricted 26,678,606.00        26,102,418.00        27,666,822.00        25,257,140.00     21,003,974.00     22,438,665.00     17,486,056.00     17,310,120       18,864,626       16,554,051       

121,986,500.00$   112,580,626.00$   104,148,562.00$   93,935,044.00$   78,536,731.00$   70,659,195.00$   63,426,941.00$   58,936,386$     55,015,429$     51,124,984$     

Business-type activities

Total business-type activities net position

Primary government

Total primary government net position

CITY OF OZARK, MISSOURI
Net Position by Component

Last 10 Fiscal Years

Governmental activities

Total governmental activities net position

Fiscal Year
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2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
Expenses

Government Activities
Administration 2,774,302$         2,237,863$         1,956,374$         2,085,356$         1,760,099$         1,333,588$    1,511,583$    1,252,244$  1,218,057$  1,150,947$  
Public Safety 4,572,687$         4,867,527$         3,657,384$         3,151,269$         3,032,981$         2,973,267$    3,139,038$    2,947,731    2,930,467$  2,628,419$  
Parks & Recreation 4,809,453$         4,740,193$         3,755,645$         3,194,073$         2,794,103$         2,997,065$    2,926,520$    2,708,982    2,675,328    2,568,444    
Stormwater 106,596$            72,834$              32,320$              26,848$          20,028$          43,121          
Streets 2,708,290$         2,548,221$         2,156,726$         1,634,297$         2,761,847$         1,746,300$    1,644,791$    1,675,404    1,332,357    1,315,161    
Interest 739,033$            822,968$            846,417$            812,284$            783,000$            845,131$        892,475$        899,101        912,468        1,063,885    

Total Government Activities 15,710,361$      15,289,606$      12,372,546$      10,877,279$      11,164,350$      9,922,199$    10,134,435$  9,526,583    9,068,677    8,726,856    

Business-type Activities
Water 4,027,390$         4,860,519$         4,679,883$         4,152,709$         3,519,233$         3,326,332$    3,452,953$    3,008,455    2,606,761    2,474,304    
Sewer 5,253,972$         5,507,922$         4,713,533$         4,144,852$         4,435,310$         4,181,467$    4,369,956$    4,072,227    4,310,197    3,838,042    
Sanitation 1,373,322$         1,149,191$         1,215,597$         1,071,237$         1,036,144$         890,312$        995,058$        867,357        835,928        797,122        

Total Business-type Activities 10,654,684$      11,517,632$      10,609,013$      9,368,798$         8,990,687$         8,398,111$    8,817,967$    7,948,039    7,752,886    7,109,468    

Program Revenues
Government Activities

Charges for services 3,338,592$         3,104,413$         2,943,083$         2,765,997$         1,923,040$         2,478,030$    2,349,866$    2,294,580    2,268,975    2,249,655    
Operating grants and contributions 144,152$            4,550$                297,396$            457,187$            2,870,436$         56,376$          25,414$          46,812          81,829          123,174        
Capital grants and contributions 3,889,292$         4,255,739$         3,421,413$         2,987,522$         89,158$              2,349,038$    1,950,444$    1,755,873    887,685        676,169        

Total Government Activities 7,372,036$         7,364,702$         6,661,892$         6,210,706$         4,882,634$         4,883,444$    4,325,724$    4,097,265    3,238,489    3,048,998    

Business-type Activities
Charges for services 10,620,647$      10,109,728$      10,283,909$      10,345,852$      8,602,454$         8,356,951$    8,195,716$    7,916,878    7,909,416    7,594,158    
Operating grants and contributions -$                     -$                     710,307$            1,900$                -$                     -$                -                     56,173          -                     
Capital grants and contributions 667,194$            1,757,610$         1,110,320$         1,493,604$         2,037,875$         1,156,890$    1,073,536$    808,097        1,100,650    179,615        

Total Business-type Activities 11,287,841$      11,867,338$      12,104,536$      11,841,356$      10,640,329$      9,513,841$    9,269,252$    8,724,975$  9,066,239$  7,773,773$  

Fiscal Year

CITY OF Ozark, MISSOURI
Changes in Net Position

Last Ten Fiscal Years
Page 1 of 2
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2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
Net (Expense)/Revenue

Government Activities (8,338,325)$   (7,924,904)$   (5,710,654)$   (4,666,573)$   (6,281,716)$   (5,038,755)$   (5,808,711)$   (5,429,318)$   (5,830,188)$   (5,677,858)$   
Business-type Activities 633,157          349,706          1,495,523      2,472,558      1,649,642      1,115,730      451,285          776,936          1,313,353      664,305          
Total Net Expense (7,705,168)     (7,575,198)     (4,215,131)     (2,194,015)     (4,632,074)     (3,923,025)     (5,357,426)     (4,652,382)     (4,516,835)     (5,013,553)     

Government Activities
Taxes 14,020,142    12,954,539    12,591,429    11,052,182    9,946,752      9,526,536      8,395,893      7,563,977      7,460,776      7,272,166      
Interest 854,390          527,668          152,248          38,162            83,121            151,286          88,650            21,916            23,139            16,923            
Other 57,889            58,402            13,646            19,129            63,594            46,216            37,092            37,223            (40,813)           101,145          
Transfers In/(out) 120,000          110,000          80,000            110,000          110,000          100,000          100,000          83,000            121,898          78,000            
Gain on Sale of Assets -                  -                  3,967              -                  6,576              8,168              

Total Government Activities 15,052,421    13,650,609    12,841,290    11,219,473    10,210,043    9,832,206      8,621,635      7,706,116      7,565,000      7,468,234      

Business-type Activities
Taxes 1,241,969      1,270,155      1,172,824      1,126,135      1,053,807      1,010,042      944,646          888,284          909,443          892,753          
Interest 875,721          1,196,498      460,127          79,340            115,494          404,703          368,386          61,939            54,735            47,475            
Other 60,931            22,274            -                  13,314            -                       
Transfers In/(out) (120,000)        (110,000)        (80,000)           (110,000)        (110,000)        (100,000)        (100,000)        (83,000)           (121,898)        (78,000)           
Gain on Sale of Assets 12,134            56,052            8,328              

Total Business-type Activities 2,058,621      2,356,653      1,587,359      1,151,527      1,059,301      1,323,073      1,226,346      867,223          842,280          862,228          
Total Primary Government 17,111,042    16,007,262    14,428,649    12,371,000    11,269,344    11,155,279    9,847,981      8,573,339      8,407,280      8,330,462      

Changes in Net Position
Government Activities 6,714,096      5,725,705      7,130,636      6,552,900      3,928,327      4,793,451      2,812,924      2,276,798      1,734,812      1,790,376      
Business-type Activities 2,691,778      2,706,359      3,082,882      3,624,085      2,708,943      2,438,803      1,677,631      1,644,159      2,155,633      1,526,533      
Total Change in Net Position 9,405,874$    8,432,064$    10,213,518$  10,176,985$  6,637,270$    7,232,254$    4,490,555$    3,920,957$    3,890,445$    3,316,909$    

General Revenues And Other Changes In 
Net Positon

CITY OF OZARK, MISSOURI
Changes in Net Position

Last Ten Fiscal Years
Page 2 of 2

Fiscal Year
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2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
General Fund

Nonspendable 190,685$          112,228$          623,327$          98,322$            500,559$          529,712$           457,087$           472,799$        449,606$        478,973$          
Restricted -                     -                     203,613            28,154              28,154              37,454               194,144             209,894           204,884           198,350            
Assigned -                     -                     1,265,300         847,457            742,210            748,467             625,412             77,147             101,927           91,606               
Unassigned 11,917,304      9,506,783         7,731,432         7,842,787         4,868,524         3,572,496          2,247,686          1,615,972       2,153,872       2,005,477         

Total General Fund 12,107,989$    9,619,011$      9,823,672$      8,816,720$      6,139,447$      4,888,129          3,524,329          2,375,812$     2,910,289$     2,774,406$       

Park/Stormwater Funds
Nonspendable 82,270$            70,838$            110,121$          131,797$          112,123$          62,274               117,611             142,266$        133,388$        105,054$          
Restricted 6,837,145.00   6,773,618.00   6,758,036.00   675,653.00      672,620.00      667,628             4,389,498          3,907,167       3,826,765       3,665,524         
Assigned -                     -                     5,153,994.00   4,622,479.00   4,307,940          
Unassigned -                     -                     -                     -                     

Total Park/Stormwater Fund 6,919,415$      6,844,456$      6,868,157$      5,961,444$      5,407,222$      5,037,842          4,507,109          4,049,433$     3,960,153$     3,770,578$       

All Other Governmental Funds
Nonspendable -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          667                     -                        667                   
Restricted 919,426            779,345            626,809            455,564            288,681            182,917             106,173             270,419           130,379           228,000            
Assigned -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          232,170           188,730            
Unassigned -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          (9,827)                

Total All Other Governmental Funds 919,426            779,345            626,809            455,564            288,681            173,090             106,840             270,419$        363,216$        416,730$          

Total Governmental Fund Balances 19,946,830$    17,242,812$    17,318,638$    15,233,728$    11,835,350$    10,099,061$     8,138,278$       6,695,664$     7,233,658$     6,961,714$       

CITY OF OZARK, MISSOURI
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year
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2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
REVENUES

Taxes 13,175,919$       12,094,108$       11,742,639$       10,414,974$       9,369,518$         8,877,552$     7,757,022$     7,012,037$     6,915,236$     6,743,832$   
Franchise Fees 844,223              874,642              836,126              610,239              550,265              628,955          635,272          553,334          543,546          564,066        
Licenses and permits 444,320              401,734              381,262              356,025              248,344              275,254          256,903          197,903          270,224          176,018        
Fines and forfeitures 136,528              75,289                 75,062                 48,688                 40,439                 91,946            118,860          122,656          195,666          407,433        
Investment earnings 854,390              527,668              152,248              38,162                 83,121                 151,286          88,650            21,916            23,139            16,923          
Other Fees 220,872              371,940              350,563              383,817              61,250                 59,560            44,899            84,447            78,023            
Donations and grants 4,033,444           4,174,539           3,607,309           3,400,409           2,898,344           2,345,854       295,306          515,693          937,514          787,630        
Miscellaneous revenues 57,889                 58,402                 13,646                 19,129                 233,470              324,479          279,135          287,154          157,045          163,550        
Charge for Services 2,536,872           2,341,200           2,247,696           2,021,767           1,464,381           1,832,567       1,687,161       1,608,690       1,585,249       1,549,487     

Total Revenues 22,304,457         20,919,522         19,406,551         17,293,210         14,949,132         14,587,453     11,163,208     10,403,830     10,705,642     10,408,939   

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Administrative fees 2,205,472 2,012,513 2,008,297 1,418,190 1,698,448 1,254,101       1,220,641       1,269,810       1,219,136       1,121,368     
Public Safety 4,289,167 4,128,397 3,688,027 3,298,498 2,963,847 2,904,806       2,750,377       2,742,996       2,625,386       2,435,041     
Streets 1,233,037 1,176,899 988,437 3,422,350 1,867,307 772,093          703,411          892,549          709,681          765,585        
Recreation 4,313,491 4,154,032 3,419,336 715,277 2,402,085 2,597,303       2,455,382       2,280,012       2,210,641       2,121,315     
Capital Outlay 6,875,478 8,414,267 5,877,129 4,067,760 3,342,689 3,562,916       2,761,174       4,011,156       2,651,472       1,762,335     
 

Debt service:
Principal retirement 422,586 432,277 596,007 986,057 319,028 782,350          734,092          668,573          583,298          266,321        
Interest and fiscal agent fees 739,033 810,364 833,154 798,921 769,537 861,269          879,920          883,546          902,587          1,057,328     

Total Expenditures 20,078,264$       21,128,749$       17,410,387$       14,707,053$       13,362,941$       12,734,838$   11,504,997$   12,748,642$   10,902,201$   9,529,293$   

CITY OF OZARK, MISSOURI
Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds

Last Ten Fiscal Years
Page 1 of 2

Fiscal Year
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2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

Over Expneditures  $      2,226,193  $        (209,227)  $      1,996,164  $       2,586,157  $    1,586,191  $    1,852,615  $      (341,789) (2,344,812)$   (196,559)$    879,646$      

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfer from other funds 2,212,650         2,575,913         1,650,608         1,570,075          1,475,100      1,802,434       1,558,826       1,721,497       1,952,334    1,287,842    
Transfer to other funds (2,092,650)       (2,465,913)       (1,570,608)       (1,460,075)         (1,365,100)     (1,702,434)     (1,458,826)     (1,638,497)     (1,830,436)   (1,209,842)   
Lease Pymt to PFC & LCRA -                     -                     -                     244,599             -                  -                   -                   -                   -                 -                 
Insurance Claims -                     -                     -                     -                      -                  -                   -                   30,388             10,678          52,811          
Debt issurance cost -                     -                     -                     -                      -                  -                   -                   -                   -                 -                 
Loan proceeds -                     -                     -                     -                      -                  -                   -                   430,922          300,000        1,535,582    
Retirement of Notes Payable -                     -                     -                     -                      -                  -                   -                   -                   -                 (1,532,102)   
Sale of capital assets 357,825            23,401              8,746                 434,575             30,271            8,168               3,851               2,342               3,927            1,501            
Developers Contribution -                     -                     -                     -                      -                  -                   1,657,348       1,272,047       -                 -                 
Shared Cost of Riverside Bridge -                     -                     -                     -                      -                  -                   -                   (200,000)         -                 -                 
Impact Fees -                     -                     -                     -                      -                  -                   23,204            14,945             32,000          11,713          

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)              477,825              133,401                88,746               789,174           140,271            108,168        1,784,403 1,633,644       468,503        147,505        

Net Change in Fund Balances 2,704,018$      (75,826)$           2,084,910$      3,375,331$        1,726,462$    1,960,783$    1,442,614$    (711,168)$       271,944$      1,027,151$  

Debt service as a percentage of 
noncapital expenditures 8.80% 9.77% 12.39% 16.78% 10.86% 17.92% 18.46% 17.76% 18.01% 17.04%

Excess (Deficiency) Of Revenues 

CITY OF OZARK, MISSOURI
Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds

Last Ten Fiscal Years
Page 2 of 2

Fiscal Year
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Fiscal Year Property Taxes
Sales Tax - City & 

County
Franchise Tax - 

Cable & Gas
Missouri Motor 

Fuel Tax
Other Taxes Total Revenues

2024 1,116,783$         10,906,354$        $            844,223  $         1,152,782 -$                     14,020,142$       
2023 1,096,731$         9,911,054$          $            874,642  $         1,086,323 -$                     12,968,750$       
2022 1,009,736$         9,864,806$          $            836,126  $            868,097 -$                     12,578,765$       
2021 998,107$             8,646,311$          $            610,239  $            770,556 -$                     11,025,213$       
2020 934,252$             7,735,997$          $            550,265  $            699,269 -$                     9,919,783$         
2019 931,474$             7,237,522$         628,955$             727,251$             1,334$                 9,526,535$         
2018 864,401$             6,174,486$         635,272$             717,511$             624$                    8,392,294$         
2017 857,905$             5,432,563$         553,334$             720,627$             942$                    7,564,429$         
2016 792,159$             5,414,821$         543,546$             707,187$             1,069$                 7,457,713$         
2015 782,078$             5,263,539$         564,066$             697,088$             1,130$                 7,306,771$         

Note:

CITY OF OZARK, MISSOURI

Tax Revenues By Source, Governmental Funds

Last Ten Fiscal Years

As set out in Section 32.057 of the Missouri Revised State Statues, it is a violation to make known in any manner the tax returns of 
departmental records derived from the Missouri Department of Revenue, including sales taxes, franchise fees, and other tax sources.  Due to 
the confidentiality of earnings information, the above alternative information is provided to assist the users in understanding these revenue 
sources, including sales taxes, the City's largest own-source revenue. 
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2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
City of Ozark (Real Only) 0.2708 0.2708 0.2742 0.2742 0.2922 0.2922 0.2922 0.2922 0.2922 0.2922
Ozark Schools 4.1400 4.1400 4.1400 4.1400 4.1400 4.1400 4.1400 4.1400 4.1400 4.1400
Ozark Fire District 0.7648 0.757 0.7591 0.7591 0.6343 0.6343 0.6366 0.6380 0.6380 0.6380
Ozark Special Road District 0.3497 0.3497 0.1401 0.1401 0.1477 0.1477 0.1482 0.1482 0.1482 0.1482
County Revenue 0.0446 0.0446 0.0576 0.0576 0.0664 0.0540 0.0620 0.0557 0.0715 0.0715
State of Missouri 0.0300 0.0300 0.0300 0.0300 0.0300 0.0300 0.0300 0.0300 0.0300 0.0300
Library 0.1861 0.1861 0.1875 0.1875 0.2009 0.2009 0.2009 0.2009 0.0887 0.0887
Junior College 0.1871 0.1871 0.1875 0.1875 0.1996 0.1990 0.2023 0.1498 0.1500 0.1494
Ambulance 0.1236 0.1236 0.1242 0.1242 0.1311 0.1311 0.1324 0.1324 0.1324 0.1324
Senate Bill 40 Board 0.0743 0.0743 0.0749 0.0749 0.0790 0.0790 0.0799 0.0799 0.0799 0.0799
Health 0.0413 0.0413 0.0416 0.0416 0.0439 0.0439 0.0444 0.0444 0.0444 0.0444
Senior Citizens 0.0465 0.0465 0.0469 0.0469 0.0495 0.0495 0.0500 0.0500 0.0500 0.0500
Total District Overlapping 6.2588 6.251 6.0636 6.0636 6.0146 6.0016 6.0189 5.9615 5.8653 5.8647

Source: Christian County Collector

CITY OF OZARK, MISSOURI
Property Tax Rates

Direct and Overlapping Governments
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year
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Fiscal Year 
Ended 

December 31 Residential Agricultural Commercial
Local Railroad 
and Utilities

Commercial/ 
State RRU

Total Taxable 
Assessed Value

Estimated Actual 
Value

Assessed Value 
as a Percentage 
of Actual Value

Total 
Direct 
Levy

2024 251,631,390          124,600                   92,017,920                  3,842,054        4,234,433 351,850,397          1,638,209,092        21.48% 0.2708
2023 236,644,840          124,090                   93,055,130                     919,170        3,346,492 334,089,722          1,550,660,716        21.54% 0.2742
2022 211,727,090          127,480                   83,767,460                  1,046,900        2,957,069 299,625,999          1,389,701,154        21.56% 0.2742
2021 202,762,470          130,870                   81,880,780                  1,086,540        3,016,053 288,876,713          1,336,959,519        21.61% 0.2742
2020 175,205,620          122,800                   80,139,020           739,730                3,235,291 259,442,461          1,186,014,554        21.88% 0.2922
2019 167,761,530          127,960                   75,313,250           640,050                3,375,228 247,218,018          1,131,923,404        21.84% 0.2922
2018 158,650,630          124,650                   76,405,210           465,380         2,434,322      238,080,192          1,083,869,916        21.97% 0.2922
2017 152,584,930          126,780                   72,759,990           505,390         2,715,626      228,692,716          1,041,575,723        21.96% 0.2922
2016 144,852,320          119,420                   68,051,060           458,400         2,674,642      216,155,842          985,826,117           21.93% 0.2922
2015 142,104,790          120,500                   67,914,600           410,720         2,797,515      213,348,125          971,182,973           21.97% 0.2922

Source:  Christian County Clerk

NOTES:  Residential property is assessed at 19% of appraised value, agriculture at 12% and commercial and industrial at 32%.
                 City of Ozark assesses property tax levy on real property only.  

CITY OF OZARK, MISSOURI
Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property

Last Ten Fiscal Years
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Taxpayer
Taxable 

Assessed Value Rank
Percentage of Total 
Assessed Valuation

Taxable 
Assessed 
Value Rank

Percentage of 
Total Assessed 

Valuation
25th Street Partners, LLC            2,967,020 1 11.64%                        -   -                    -                           
Wal-Mart 2,875,390          2 11.28% 2,875,420$     1 18.97%
Spire Missouri (Missouri Gas Energy) 2,658,500          3 10.43% 957,380           10                 6.32%
Lowes 2,161,950          4 8.48% 2,149,090       2 14.18%
Ozark Riverview Manor 2,160,280          5 8.47% -                        -                    
Lester Cox Medical Centers 1,636,290          6 6.42% -                        -                    
D & L Realty 1,510,240          7 5.92% -                        -                    
B & B Movie Theaters 1,427,390          8 5.60% 1,952,450       3 12.88%
Villas at James River 1,403,320          9 5.51% -                        -                    
Ozark MO Medical LLC 1,345,700          10 5.28% -                        -                    
Old South Plantation, LLC 1,239,880          11 4.86% 1,013,520       9                   6.69%
Creative Investments 1,141,470          12 4.48% -                        -                    
OPV-PC LLC 1,085,120          13 4.26% 1,132,160       8                   7.47%
Excelsior Gardens 994,840             14 3.90% -                        -                    
Belanger, Helms, Kell & Teeter LLC 883,420             15 3.47% -                    
MD&K LLC 1,423,330.00 4                   9.39%
Blue West Jackson Street Holdings, LLC 1,283,170.00 5                   8.46%
HMR Properties, LLC 1,232,620.00 6                   8.13%
SkyScapes of Ozark, LLC 1,139,680.00 7                   7.52%

Total 25,490,810$     100.00% 15,158,820$   1                          

Source: Christian County Assessor

Total Assessed Valuation for 2024 25,490,810       
Total Assessed Valuation for 2015 15,158,820       

2024 2015

CITY OF OZARK, MISSOURI
Principal Property Taxpayers

Current Year and 2015

77



Amount
Percentage of 

Levy Amount Percentage of Levy

2024 930,939          872,939           93.8% 0 872,939               93.8%

2023 893,163          854,108           95.6% 0 854,108               95.6%

2022 799,835          772,038           96.5% 0 772,038               96.5%

2021 768,605          661,310           86.0% 105,568            766,878               99.8%

2020 730,825          728,009           99.6% 2,588                 730,597               100.0%
2019 705,902          681,270           96.5% 20,183               701,453               99.4%
2018 695,672          667,670           96.0% 27,702               695,372               100.0%
2017 668,548          645,865           96.6% 22,683               668,548               100.0%
2016 632,492          592,249           93.6% 40,243               632,492               100.0%
2015 622,610          596,532           95.8% 26,078               622,610               100.0%

Notes: The City of Ozark, Missouri levies property tax on real property only.

                   

Source: Christian County Collector's Office

Collections may exceed the levy due to adjustments made by the county subsequent to the initial levy.

Christian County bills and collects property taxes on behalf of the City and retains a percentage of 
the taxes collected for costs of assessment and collection.

CITY OF OZARK, MISSOURI
Property Tax Levies and Collections

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year 
Ended 

December 31
Total Tax Levy 
for Fiscal Year

Collected within the Fiscal Year 
of the Levy Total Collections as of 12/31/24Collections in 

Subsequent 
Years
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1% 0.50% 0.25% 0.25% 0.375% 3.000%
Fiscal Year Direct Sales Tax Rate General Parks & Stormwater Wastewater Capital Improvement Transportation Recreational Marijuana Total

2024 2.375% 4,735,835$                     2,367,917$                     1,183,959$                     1,183,959$                     1,775,016$                     188,618$                        11,435,304$   

2023 2.375% 4,694,808$                     2,347,406$                     1,173,702$                     1,173,702$                     1,760,485$                     31,141$                          11,181,244$   

2022 2.375% 4,554,018$                     2,550,236$                     1,121,245$                     1,121,245$                     1,639,307$                     1,639,307$                     10,986,051$   

2021 2.375% 4,071,489$                     2,033,585$                     1,012,099$                     1,012,099$                     1,524,174$                     1,524,174$                     9,653,446$      

2020 2.375% 3,643,057                       1,821,506                       910,765                          910,764                          1,360,671                       1,360,671                       8,646,762        

2019 2.375% 3,328,784                       1,664,380                       831,529                          831,529                          1,246,401                       1,246,401                       7,902,623        

2018 2.375% 3,156,059                       1,578,041                       789,014                          789,014                          530,277                          530,277                          6,842,405        

2017 2.375% 2,964,891                       1,482,397                       741,013                          741,221                          154,869                          154,869                          6,084,391        

2016 2.000% 3,001,815                       1,500,908                       750,438                          750,437                          -                                        -                                        6,003,598        

2015 2.000% 2,938,129                       1,468,905                       734,762                          734,760                          -                                        -                                        5,876,556        

Source: Missouri Department of Revenue

CITY OF OZARK, MISSOURI
Direct City Sales Tax Revenue by Type

Last Ten Fiscal Years
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Fiscal Year City Direct Rate
Christian 

County 911
Christian County 

Rate State Rate Total Rate
2024 2.375% 0.250% 1.500% 4.225% 8.350%
2023 2.375% 0.250% 1.500% 4.225% 8.350%
2022 2.375% 0.250% 1.500% 4.225% 8.350%
2021 2.375% 0.250% 1.500% 4.225% 8.350%
2020 2.375% 0.250% 1.500% 4.225% 8.350%
2019 2.375% 0.250% 1.500% 4.225% 8.350%
2018 2.375% 0.250% 1.500% 4.225% 8.350%
2017 2.375% 0.250% 1.500% 4.225% 8.350%
2016 2.000% 0.250% 1.500% 4.225% 7.975%
2015 2.000% 0.250% 1.500% 4.225% 7.975%

Source: Missouri Department of Revenue

CITY OF OZARK, MISSOURI
Direct and Overlapping Sales Tax Rates

Last Ten Fiscal Years
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Fiscal 
Year

Special 
Obligation 

Bond

Lease 
Obligations

Special 
Assessment 

Bonds
Certificates of 
Participation

PFC & LCRA 
Notes Payable

Lease 
Obligations

Special 
Assessment 

Bonds
Certificates of 
Participation

Revenue 
Bonds

Total 
Outstanding 

Debt

Percentage of 
Personal 
Income Population

Debt Per 
Capita

2024 -                  32,768            16,742,606    -                  -                  173,391          9,865,000      5,085,000      31,898,765    4.16% 23,248 1,372              

2023 -                  42,758            17,122,434    -                  -                  249,037          10,410,000    6,545,000      34,369,229    4.91% 23,067 1,490              

2022 -                  52,323            17,510,030    35,116            -                  323,967          10,930,000    7,905,000      36,756,436    5.82% 22,512 1,633              

2021 -                  -                  61,476            18,132,000    80,902            -                  541,717          11,944,625    9,285,000      40,045,720    7.02% 21,866 1,831              

2020 -                  -                  70,235            18,151,112    713,586          -                  711,018          12,383,184    10,610,000    42,639,135    7.98% 20,768 2,053              

2019 -                  -                  78,952            18,711,112    1,235,473      -                  823,807          12,808,184    11,820,000    45,477,528    8.97% 20,482 2,220              

2018 -                  -                  86,628            18,736,816    1,730,760      -                  936,000          13,213,184    13,135,000    47,838,388    9.69% 20,291 2,358              

2017 -                  -                  94,304            18,989,200    2,204,792      -                  1,047,608      13,579,504    14,515,000    50,430,408    10.42% 19,905 2,534              

2016 -                  -                  101,649          19,233,456    2,190,842      -                  1,158,653      13,926,544    15,875,000    52,486,144    11.53% 19,308 2,718              

2015 -                  -                  108,665          19,454,792    2,245,787      -                  1,269,137      7,380,670      17,185,000    47,644,051    11.21% 19,032 2,503              

Note:  Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.

CITY OF OZARK, MISSOURI

Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Total Outstanding DebtGOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS-TYPE
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Fiscal Year

General 
Obligation 

Bonds

Fund Balance 
Debt Service 

Fund
Net General 
Bonded Debt

Percentage of 
Actual Taxable 

Value of 
Property (1)

Net Bonded 
Debt per Capita

2024 -                          -                          -                          0.00% -                          
2023 -                          -                          -                          0.00% -                          
2022 -                          -                          -                          0.00% -                          
2021 -                          -                          -                          0.00% -                          
2020 -                          -                          -                          0.00% -                          
2019 -                          -                          -                          0.00% -                          
2018 -                          -                          -                          0.00% -                          
2017 -                          -                          -                          0.00% -                          
2016 -                          -                          -                          0.00% -                          
2015 -                          -                          -                          0.00% -                          

Note:  Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.

CITY OF OZARK, MISSOURI
Ratios of General Bonded Debt Outstanding

Last Ten Fiscal Years
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Governmental Unit Debt Outstanding

Estimated 
Percentage 
Applicable

Estimated share of 
direct and overlapping 

debt
Ozark School District 82,460,000$            50.00% 41,230,000$                 
Ozark Fire District 10,700,000               47.00% 5,029,000                      
City of Ozark direct debt 16,781,695               100.00% 16,781,695                   

Subtotal, overlapping debt 93,160,000               46,259,000                   

Subtotal, direct debt 16,781,695               16,781,695                   

Total direct and overlapping debt 109,941,695$          63,040,695$                 

Source:  Ozark School District, Ozark Fire Department

   

CITY OF OZARK, MISSOURI
Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt

December 31, 2024

Note:  Overlapping governments are those that coincide, in part or in total, with the geographic boundaries of the City.  
This schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those overlapping governments that is borne by the 
property taxpayers of the City of Ozark.  This process recognizes that, when considering the government's ability to issue 
and repay long-term debt, the entire debt burden borne by the property taxpayers should be taken into account.  
However, this does not imply that every taxpayer is a resident and responsible for repaying the debt of each overlapping 
government.

The percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated using the assessed property values.  The applicable 
percentage is estimated by dividing the City's assessed valuation by the applicable governmental unit's total assessed 
valuation.
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Legal Debt Margin Calculation for Fiscal Year 2024

Assessed Value 25,490,810$      

Debt limit (10% of assessed value) 2,549,081$        

City Debt applicable to debt Limit:

General obligation bonds -                           

Total net debt applicable to limit -$                         

Legal debt margin 2,549,081$        

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

25,490,810$      318,315,237$    299,625,999$    288,821,853$    255,467,440$    247,218,018$    238,080,192$    230,724,002$    217,865,409$    214,834,872$    

 $        2,549,081  $      31,831,524  $      29,962,600  $      28,882,185  $      25,546,744 24,721,802        23,808,019        23,072,400        21,786,541        21,483,487        

                            -                             -                             -                             -                             - -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           

 $        2,549,081  $      31,831,524  $      29,962,600  $      28,882,185  $      25,546,744 24,721,802$      23,808,019$      23,072,400$      21,786,541$      21,483,487$      

0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Section 95.115 of the 1978 Missouri Revised Statutes permits any county or city, by vote of two-thirds of qualified electors voting theron, to incur additional indebtedness for city purposes not to exceed five (5) percent of the taxable tangible property 
therein, as shown by the last assessment.

Section 95.120 of the 1978 Missouri Revised Statutes permits any county or city, by vote of two-thirds of qualified electors voting theron, to incur additional indebtedness for city purposes not to exceed five (5) percent of the taxable tangible property 
therein, as shown by the last assessment.

Sections 95.125 and 95.130 of the 1978 Missouri Revised Statutes provide that any city may become indebted, not exceeding in the aggregate, an additional ten (10) percent for the purposes of acquiring right-of-ways, constructing, extending and improving 
streets and avenues and/or sanitary or storm sewer system, and an additional ten (10) percent for purchasing or construction of waterworks, electric or other light plants, provided the total general obligation indebtedness of the city does not exceed twenty 
(20) percent of the assessed valuation. 

Debt limit

CITY OF OZARK, MISSOURI

Legal Debt Margin Information

December 31, 2024

Assessed valuation, January 1

Total net debt applicable to limit

Legal debt margin

Total net debt applicable to the limit as a 
percentage

Last Ten Fiscal Years
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Principal Interest Total Coverage
2024 4,700,220         4,027,390                      672,830 545,000                  312,479          857,479          0.78
2023 5,027,997         4,860,519                      167,478 520,000                  209,689          729,689          0.23
2022 4,967,111         4,679,883                      287,228 511,611                  414,990          926,601          0.31
2021 9,046,224         7,669,494                   1,376,730 541,918                  447,309          989,227          1.39
2020 4,130,181         2,780,165                   1,350,016 489,583                  416,654          906,237          1.49
2019 3,737,980         3,326,332                      411,648 465,000                  462,237          927,237          0.44
2018 3,722,018         2,243,516                   1,478,502 451,320                  625,158          1,076,478       1.37
2017 3,659,305         2,027,147         1,632,158         393,760                  488,494          882,254          1.85
2016 3,574,036         1,715,021         1,859,015         175,000                  272,936          447,936          4.15
2015 3,584,374         1,729,924         1,854,450         95,000                    300,452          395,452          4.69

Principal Interest Total Coverage
2024 5,086,957         5,253,972                    (167,015) 1,535,646               68,980            1,604,626       -0.10
2023 5,610,020         5,507,922                      102,098 1,407,316               125,160          1,532,476       0.07
2022 5,935,107         4,713,533                   1,221,574 1,603,409               124,539          1,727,948       0.71
2021 1,163,790         1,071,237                        92,553 1,390,943               158,726          1,549,669       0.06
2020 4,643,650         3,317,667                   1,325,983 1,342,978               185,455          1,528,433       0.87
2019 3,463,306         4,181,467                    (718,161) 1,219,999               163,422          1,383,421       -0.52
2018 3,464,910         3,031,464                      433,446 1,406,607               180,378          1,586,985       0.27
2017 3,288,199         2,523,579         764,620            931,351                  341,777          1,273,128       0.60
2016 3,409,720         2,333,203         1,076,517         560,000                  776,816          1,336,816       0.81
2015 3,131,203         2,293,451         837,752            545,000                  319,381          864,381          0.97

(2) Operating revenue includes service charges, related utility-based fees and penalties.

(3) Operating expenses excludes depreciation and non-operating expenses.

 Principal payments resumed in July, 2017.

CITY OF OZARK, MISSOURI
Pledged-Revenue Coverage by Fund

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year
Operating 

Revenues (2)
Less: Operating 

Expenses (3)
Net Available 

Revenue

Debt Service

Water system revenue bond coverage (1)

Debt Service

(4)  In 2015, 2016, 2017 Sanitary Sewer Payments for a bond issue Principal Payments were covered by remaining bond funds and not counted as 
principal payments. 

(1) Revenue bonds and their related interest are payable solely from the revenues derived from the operation of the enterprise owned by the 
City.  The taxing power of the City is not pledged to secure payment of the bonds and interest.

Sanitary sewer system revenue bond coverage (1)

Fiscal Year
Operating 

Revenues (2)
Less: Operating 

Expenses (3)
Net Available 

Revenue

85



Fiscal 
Year

Population       
(1) 

Median Age      
(4)

Per Capita 
Income        

(1)

Median 
Household 

Income         
(1)

Public School 
Enrollment (2)

Unemployment 
Rate (4)

2024 23,909 33.5             32,067              69,372 5,945 3.0%
2023 23,067 33.1             30,317              79,132 6,055 3.6%
2022 22,512 34.1             28,077              62,169 6,051 4.1%
2021 21,866 34.1 26,071           58,995            5,933 4.1%
2020 20,768 32.9 25,738           54,602            5,892 4.6%
2019 20,482 34 24,740           54,031            5,787 2.8%
2018 20,291 33.6 24,319           52,696            5,727 2.0%
2017 19,905 33.6 24,319           52,696            5,579 3.1%
2016 19,308 33.8 23,568           49,116            5,466 3.9%
2015 19,032 33.1 22,334           45,695            5,390 4.2%

Sources:  
(1)  U.S. Census Bureau (actual and estimated)
(2)  Missouri Department of Elementary and Secondary Education
(3)  U.S. Department of Labor
(4) World Population Reviews

CITY OF OZARK, MISSOURI
Demographic and Economic Statistics

Last Ten Fiscal Years
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Total
Employees Rank

Total
Employees Rank

Ozark School District 998 1 750 1
Christian County 303 2 375 2
Walmart 280 3 250 3
Lamberts 247 4 220 4
Finley Farms 162 5 0 0
NetSmart 152 6 -               -           
City of Ozark 124 7 106 6
White River Marine Group (Tracker) 101 8 101 7
OTC Richwood Valley 87 9 113 5
Creative Audio 85 10 72 -           

Total 2,539          1,987           

Source: City Clerk's Office, Springfield Area Chamber of Commerce, US Census Bureau, OzarkChamber of Commerce

Employer

2024 2015

CITY OF OZARK, MISSOURI
Principal Employers

Current Year and 2015
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Building 
Demolitions (2) 6/3/2025

Fiscal Year
Total Estimated 
Actual Value (1)

Number of 
Permits

Estimated Cost 
of Construction

Number of 
Permits

Estimated Cost 
of Construction

Number of 
Permits

Estimated Cost 
of Construction

Number of 
Permits Emailed Megan B.

2024        1,638,209,092 178 34,761,988       4 30,815,000 27 18,205,469 3
2023        1,550,660,716 110 34,761,988       25 30,815,000 18 18,205,469 2
2022        1,389,701,154 166 41,101,599       29 32,742,846 23 731,000 6
2021        1,336,959,519 216 50,428,550       36 23,178,141 11 432,000 1
2020 1,186,014,554       126 29,829,200       18 8,807,000         13           3,682,075 6
2019 1,131,923,404       157 29,180,669       9 6,248,000         22           1,783,428 17
2018 1,083,869,916       143 27,179,900       16 11,989,462       26 4,900,495         11
2017 1,041,575,723       104 18,332,000       9 5,241,665         29 500,430             10
2016 985,826,117          169 33,118,400       10 14,324,862       40 14,569,915       29
2015 971,182,973          116 13,137,699       24 7,327,900         46 7,288,205         5

(1) Source: Christian County Assessor
(2) Source: City of Ozark Planning Department

Residential (2) Commercial (2)

New Construction

CITY OF OZARK, MISSOURI
Property Value and Construction

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Alterations and Additions (2)
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2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
Function/Programs
General government

Administrative Services 7 2 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Municipal Court 4 3 4 3 3 4 3 3 3 3
Human Resources 1 0 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Planning & Development 7 4 4 4 4 4 3 3 3 3
Building Inspections 1 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 1
Finance 3 4 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3

Police
Officers 34 37 32 31 33 33 32 33 32 28
Civilians* 4 4 4 4 4 3 5 5 5 5

Parks and recreation 20 21 18 16 17 16 16 16 15 17
Utility Billing 3 3 3 4 4 7 7 7 7 7
Public Works

Administration 6 5 5 4 3 4 4 5 5 5
Vehicle maintenance 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Street Maintenance 5 3 9 8 6 7 9 9 10 10
Water 16 4 6 7 12 12 7 7 7 7
Wastewater 10 8 10 9 7 9 8 8 8 9
Animal Control 1 1 1 1 1 1 2 2 2 2

Total 124 103 107 102 105 111 107 109 108 106

Source: City of Ozark Human Resource Department

CITY OF OZARK, MISSOURI
Full-Time Equivalent Employees by Function/Programs

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year
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2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
Function/Programs
General government

Business Registrations issued 591 582 567 406 276* 618         600         538         471         467         
New Residential building permits issued 178 110 123 216 126 157         143         104         169         116         
New Commercial building permits issued 4 25 26 36 18 9              16            9              10            24            
Building inspections completed (3) 2959 2626 3560 3015 1518 3,870      2,560      2,313      2,237      1,667      

Police-Patrol (4)
Calls for Services 19,894    21,681    19,543    19,037    18,913 18,057    18,192    16,486    16,278    20,312    
Arrests 980         849         775         919         977 934         1,259      1,030      951         1,113      
Tickets issued 1,423      1,319      1,320      1,538      1,199 1,510      1,345      1,024      1,763      3,523      
Accidents 852         719         719         648         533 666         649         613         634         674         

Public Works
Streets resurfaced (miles)* 3.73        1.80        0.81        1.03        3.1 1.6          1.4          2.1          2.1          1.1          
Number of water towers 6 7 7 6 9 9              9              8              8              
Number of wells 10 12 12 12 13 13            13            12            12            11            
Number of water meters 10098 10025 9961 9547 9314 9,048      8,894      8,724      8,534      8,350      
Average daily well production (MGD) 3.1 3.1 3.1 4.3 3.3 3.2          3.0          2.8          2.7          2.6          
WWTP average daily flow (MGD) 1.612 1.612 1.612 1.7 1.6 1.6          1.5          1.5          1.4          1.5          

Recreation  
Number of recreational programs 44 43 43 43 36 50            49            45            43            43            
Number of special events offered 12 12 11 11 13 14            14            12            11            11            
Number of Fitness Center memberships 5535 5424 5003 4244 3784 4,952      4,338      4,227      3,967      3,956      

Source: City department records.

(3) Estimated inspections based on TOTAL # of permits
(4)Fluctuations in police statistics are a result of evolving policing strategies and practices over the reporting period.

* This number is lower than previous years due to a new system being adopted that is 
not being utilized by business owners .   Also there were some business closures due
to Pandemic in 2020.

CITY OF OZARK, MISSOURI
Operating Indicators by Function

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year
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2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 6/3/2025
Function Emailed Chandra, Justin, Hayden and Jeremy
General government

Area (square miles) 11.32 11.32 11.32 11.32 11.32 11.32 11.32 11.32 11.32      11.36      
Number of general governmental buildings 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2              2              

Public Safety
Number of police stations 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1              1              

Public Works
Miles of water mains 180.04 177.48 173.6 172 170.33 162.8      160.9      159.4      154.6      146.9      
Miles of sanitary sewers 151.75 150.8 150.59 150 148.2 145.1      140.7      136.4      129.6      125.7      
Miles of sanitary force mains 10.19 10.19 10.4 10.6 10.6 10.60      10.60      10.40      10.40      10.40      
Wastewater treatment capacity (MGD) 3.1 3.1 3.1 3.1 3.1 3.1          3.1          3.1          3.1          3.1          

Recreation
Number of parks 8 8 8 8 7 7 7 7 7              7              
Park acreage 72.5 72.5 72.5 72.5 62.63 62.63 62.63 62.63 62.63 62.63
Number of recreational facilities 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3              3              
Number of baseball/softball fields 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6              6              
Number of soccer fields 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4              4              

Source: City departmental records.

CITY OF OZARK, MISSOURI
Capital Asset Statistics by Function

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year
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